
















































MAJETT &CO
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Midwest Granite Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Midwest Granite Private Limited
("the Compdny"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2022, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows forthe yearthen ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereafter referred to as the "financial
statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20t5, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2022, and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities underthose Standards are furtherdescribed in

the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements'

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 38 to the standalone financial statements in respect of
Composite Scheme of Amalgamation (the "Scheme") between the Company and its
subsidiaries, namely RDT Diamond Tools Private Limited and Midwest Mining Private
Limited ("Transferor Companies"), from the appointed date of April t,2O2t, as
approved by Regional Director vide its order dated November 29,2022. However, the
accounting treatment pursuant to the Scheme has been given effect to from the date
required under Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations, which is the beginning of the
preceding period presented i.e., April l,2O2O. Accordingly, the figures for the year
ended March 3t,2O2L have been restated to give effect to the aforesaid merger.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's report but does not include the

ndalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon
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Chartered Accountants

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
orotherwise appearsto be materially misstated. If, based on the workwe have performed and
the reports of the other auditors as furnished to us, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible forthe matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in ourauditor's reporttothe related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

a

a

a

a

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and

in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books'

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

E RABAD *
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
3t,2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31,2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section L64 (2)
of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses Unmodified opinion on the operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, is applicable only to
public companies. Accordingly, the provisions of section 197(16) of the Act are not
applicable to the company.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
US:

il.

The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial
position as stated in Note no, 33 to the Ind AS Financial Statements.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts, the company doesn't have derivative contracts;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March
37,2022.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ulti mate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

iv
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Management of the Company has not proposed final dividend for the year
which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. Hence section 123 of the Act, is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For MAJETI & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 0159755

)'tor.^gxg
Kowshik Anna
Partner
Membershlp No:244172
UDIN No : 23244L728GQKXQ6229

Place: Hyderabad
Date: December 23,2022
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ANNEXURE TTA" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(h) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements'section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financiat Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MIDWEST
GRANITE PRMTE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31,2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of directors of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on "the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India". These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibi! ity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects'

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial repofting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
over fi nancial reporting.

x
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Meaning of rnternar Financiar contrors over Financiar Reporting

A company's internal financial control over. financial reporting is a process designed toprovide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fi-nanciai rgpo.ting and thepreparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generallyaccepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financialreporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately ana rairiy' reflect the transactions anddispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thattransactions are recorded as necessary to permit-preparation of financial statements inaccordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts andexpenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations ofmanagement and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assuranceregarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised'acquisition, use, ordisposition ofthe company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

rnherent Limitations of rnternal Financial controls over Financia! Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materialmisstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not ue oetecteo. or.r, i[:-.=ctions ofany evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periodsare subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting maybecome inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliancewith the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given tous, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controlssystem over financial reporting and such internai financial controls over financial reportingwereoperatingeffectivelyasatMarch 3L,2022, basedon"thecriteriaforinternal financialcontrol over financial .reporting established by the company considering the essentialcomponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal FinancialControls Over Financial Repofting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia".

For MAIETI & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm 's Registration No: 0159

9'rru-4f.'F'
Kowshik Anna
Partner
Membership No: 244172
U D IN : 23244L7 2BGeKXe6229

e/-

U'

* *

Place: Hyderabad
Date: December 23,2022
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CharAndexunq&tto Independent Auditors' Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report of even date)

i In Respect of the Company's Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

a) A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment and right of use of
assets.

b)

B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets

The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to
a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in

our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has

been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies
have been noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than propefties where the Company is

the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee), as disclosed in
Note 3 on Property, plant and equipment and Note 4 on Right-of-use assets to the standalone
financial statements, are held in the name of the Company, except

c)

Description
of Properties

Gross
Carrying
value
(Rs in
lakhs) held in the name of

Whether
promoter,
director or
their relative
or employee

Period
held

Reason for not
being held in the
name of the
Company

Free hold
Land

27.16
Subhiksha Agro
Farms pvt ltd No

From FY

2073-14

For certain
properties acquired

through
amalgamation/mer

ger, the name
change in the
name of the
Company is

pending

39.33
Yarra Agro Estates
pvt ltd No

132.98
Reliance Granite
Private Limited No

74.70
Victorian granite
Private limited No

t.75
Ind Natali Granite
Limited No

121.38

Opusasia
Technologies
Private Limited No

Total(a) 337.30

7.47

Title deeds not
readily available
with the company
to report on the
Ownership details

No
From FY

2001-02

Title Deeds not
available with the
Company

0.51 No
From FY

2002-03

2.91 No
From FY

2006-07

4.00 No
From FY

2009-10

2.00 No
From FY

20tt-L2
Total(b) 16.89
Total(a+b) 354.19

ryn
lrt
G/
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chartere;[ $5c61tteBtb to r n d e pe n d e nt A u d ito rs, Re po rt
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report of even date)
Page 2 of 7

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use assets)
or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order
is not appllcable to the Company.

e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore
the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details
in its standalone financial statements does not arise

a) The physical verification of inventory (excluding stocks with third parties) has been conducted
at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage
and procedures of such verification by Management is appropriate. As explained to us and on
the basis of the records examined by us the value of discrepancies noticed on physical verification
of inventory as compared to book records were not tOo/o or more in aggregate for each class of
inventory.

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of rupees Five Crores, in aggregate, from Banks which
are secured on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed quarterly returns
or statements with such banks, The discrepancies of amounts as per books of account and the
Quarterly returns submitted to the banks are reported below.

NR in Lakhs

ii

iii a) During the year the company made investments in four companies, two mutual fund schemes
and one limited liability partnership. The company has granted unsecured loans to three
companies and one partnership firm and stood guarantee for three companies. The aggregate
amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such
loans, guarantees and securities to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and to parties
other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as per the table given below

=t-v

Name of the Bank HDFC Bank Limlted

Aggregate working capital
limits sanctioned 5,242.00

Nature of Current Asset
offered as Security

Primarily on Inventory and trade receivables (Refer the
note no 15.2 of the attached financial statements for
details)

Ouarter ended
June 30,
202t

September
30,2027

December
37,2021.

March 31,
2022

2,52L.77 1.701.85 1,867.58 5440.89

Amount disclosed as per
quarterly return/
statement

2,452.64 1,682.51 1,869.68 5384. 1 1

Amount as per books of
account

56.78Difference 69.07 19.34 (2.10)
Reasons for difference On Account of pending Reconciliation of customer balances

at the time of submitting returns to the Bank.
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charter{ft1Ey1;$E'b to r n d epe n de nt Aud ito rs, Repo rt
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report of even date)
Page 3 of 7

Particulars Loans Investment ntees
Aggregate amount granted/ provided durins the year 2O2t-22

- Subsidiaries 513 01 224.96 340.22
- Step- down Subsidiary 479.23
- Other parties 857.73 990.60

Balance outstanding (gross) as at 31 March 2o22 (balance sheet date) in
respect of the above case

- Subsidiaries 2,297 .73 288.13 340.22
- Steo- down Subsidiary 479.23

iv

- Other parties 857.73 990.60

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us by the company's
management and on the basis of our audit procedures, the investments made, guarantee
provided, security given and the terms and conditions of all loans and advances in the nature of
loans and guarantee provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to Company's interest.

c) According to the books of accounts and records examined by us in respect of the loans all the
loans are repayable on demand and no repayment schedules are mentioned in the agreements.

d) As there was not repayment schedule, we are not able to comment on any amount overdue by
the subsidiaries in respect of loan given.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
e) of the records of the Company. There were no loans /advances in nature of loans which fell due

during the year and were renewed/ extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same
pafties to settle the existing overdue loans/ advances in nature of loan.

f) The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to Companies and firm. Details given in
table below. No loans were granted during the year to promoters.

Aggregate amount of Ioan given AII Parties Promoters Related
Parties

- Repayable on demand (A)
- Without agreement and Repayable on

demand to subsidiaries (B)

3070.63

384.35

2272.90

384.36

Total (A+B) 3,454.99 2,597.26
Percentage of loans 75o/o

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of Sections 73,74,75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent
n otified.

\
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vi Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly
reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, goods

and services tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases and is regular in

depositing undisputed statutory dues.

As confirmed by the management sales tax, service tax, duty of excise value added tax are
not applicable to the comPanY

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us. The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March

3L, 2022 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute,

Nature of the
Statute

Nature of
Dues

Forum Period Amount
(in Lakhs)

Income tax Act,
1961

Income tax and
i nterest

Income
Appellate
Tribunal,
Hyderabad

Tax 2003-04 23.07
2004-05 18.02
2005-06 0.36
2007-oB 55.34
2009-10 7.29
2073-74 t4.78

Deputy
Commissioner
of Income Tax,
Circle 76(2),
Hyderabad

2014-15 3.77

Commissioner
of Income Tax,
Appeals-IV,
Hyderabad

20 15-16 23.69
2072-13 19.98
2079-20 21.88
20t7-L8 L19.29
20 18-19 5.60

The Central
Excise Act, !944

Excise Duty,
Redemption
Fine and Penalty

Customs,
Excise and
Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Hyderabad

2006-
20t2 185.43

Customs
1962

Act,
Customs duty,
Redemption
Fine and Penalty

2006-
201.2 1307.47

Telangana tax on
entry of goods in
to local areas act,
200 1

Entry tax Offlce of the
Asst
Commissioner
(ST), Srinagar
colony Circle,
Hyderabad

2013-14 51.85
20t4-t5 53.92
20 15-16 69.44
2076-17 46.44

20L7-L8 24.26

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, thtre are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as

ffi
viii
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charter{ffig51grpB b to rndependent Auditors, Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements,
section of our report of even date)
Page 5 of 7

ix

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not beenrecorded in the books of account

a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information andexplanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or In the payment of interest to any lender during the year.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our auditprocedures, we report that the company has not been declared wilful Defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

c) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination ofthe financial statements of the Company we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiariei
and loint Ventures.
We report that the Company did not have associate companies during the year.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge or secuiitiei
held in its subsidiaries and joint ventures.

a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares orfully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) is not appticable.

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried outin accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and'according to theinformation and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instlnce of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried outin accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to theinformation and explanations given to us, a report underSection 143(12) of theAct,'in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditori; fiutes, 2014 was notrequired to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried outin accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the

X

xi
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xii

xiii

xiv
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information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Atcordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2ol4 are not applicable to the Company.
Hence reporting under clause 3(xii)(a), (b), (c) are not applicable.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions ofSections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed inthe Standalone financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, tne company is not requiredto constitute an Audit Committee under Section 777 of the Act, and accordingty, to this extenl, theprovisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the order are not applicable to the company.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for theperiod under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its dlrectors or persons connectedwith him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank ofIndia Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial / housing finance activitiesduring the year. Accordingly, the reporting undei clause 3(xvi)(b) oi tn" order is not
applicable to the Company

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, theGroup does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of 
-clause 

3(xvi)(d) are not
applicable.

The company has not incurred cash losses during the immediately preceding financial year and currentfinancial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reportingunder clause (xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial Ratios (Also
Refer Note 43 to the Ind AS Standalone Financlal Statements), ageing and expected dates of realisationof financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, otner'inrormition aicompinying the flnancialstatements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on ourexamination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, whichcauses us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report thatCompany is not capable of meeting its liabilities exisiing at the date of balance sheet as and when theyfall due within a period of one year from the balance Iheet date. we, however, state that this is not

xvii

xviii

xix

rya



MAJETI & co conrinuatron Sheet

charter{7$6ryUngtB to r n depe nd e nt Au d ito rs, Re port
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report of even date)
Page 7 of 7

an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will qet discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

xx The company has spent requisite amount during the year as Corporate Social Responsibility under
Section 135 of the Act.

The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this
report.

For MAJETI & CO
Firm Registration Number: 0159755
Chartered Accountants

xxi

.4'Lou$r^t5'
(owshik Anna

Place: Hyderabad
Date: December 23,2022

Partner
Membership Number: 244772
UDIN No: 232447728GQKXQ6229

HYDERA



MIDWES'I GRANITE PRIVATE I.IMI ED

Balarrce sheet as at March 3L,202,2
.ll amounts in INR runless otherwise

Particulars

ASSETS

I Non-currentassets
(a) Property, plant and equipment

[bJ Capital work-in-Progress
(c) lntangible Assets
(d) Right - of- use assets

(e) Fin::ncial assets
(i) Invesrments
(ii) Othei finatrcial assets

[t DeferreC tax.^^ss(]ts (net]
Other no nt assets

l'otal
il Currentassets

[a) Inventories

[b) Financial assets
(i) Trarie receivables
(ii) Cash anC cash equivalents

[iii) Rank balances other than (ii) above

(iv) Loans
(vJ 0thers

[c) Other current assets

Current tax asset

IIQUiTY Af(t, LI ABILITIT'.S

III Equity:

[a) Equitv shar e caPital

10

11

12

i3 (i)

1,660.80
385.03

83.19
2,084.25

25.48
2,437.29

I

B(ii)
1,9

11

1s(0
16(il

3,372.88

2,845.32
546.41

1,,864.16

3,454.99
48.49

2,858.55
t07.96

134.b3

3,377.15

,7i 5;t1.7

2,803.r1:;

27 2

13

0

LIAtsILITIES
lV Non-currerrt liabilities

(aJ Fiuancialliabilitics
[i) Borrowings

(bJ Provisions

Ic) Otirer non-current liabilities
'f otal li rn-cttrrcnt !iabilities

V Currerrtliahilities
(a) F'inar:cial Irabilities

(i,1 tscit ov;ings

[ii] 'l'rade PaYabies:
- dues to rnicro ancl smali enterprises
'dtres ro others

(iiii 0ther Iinancial liabilities
(b) Otlrer currr'nt liabilities
(c) Provisioirs

tax liabilities
Total currer!t liabilities

Total

xcccrnpanying noLes are an integral part ofthe finarrcial strtemonb:

E2.0.t4

2,973.24
2,0:t6.96

83.24

1 I

As per our report of cven date
t-or MAIETI &CO.,

Chatered AccouDtants .

!'ilm's Registration Nutriber:C 1 5975S

fi'ttovoA k',
Kor,r'shikAnna
Partner
Membership Nttmber : ?.44L'/2

Hvderabad
oece^a"?3.zozz

r"l ft*-
KRanganayakam:na

Chairnran
Dlll:C0033569

For and on heh:rlf of Board

37, 771.?.7

K.Ramachandra
Director

DIN:0006008ti

)> -.

March 31,2021
As at

"16,369.67

59+.64
3.43

384.24

6,925.40
857.86
243.46

2,279.38
27,658.08

As at
March 31,2022

3

3

4A
48

5

('

:J o7e.ag
962.57

Note
No,

17,785.21
848.10

3.10
362.73

7,912..55

931.41
273.28

10,053.1915,098.78Total Current assets

46,t77.67 37,71r.271'O'tAL ASSETS

7 4.',tr
24,e70.96

t4

24,945.27

7 4.31

_2eDq4_
30,043.04

I s {iiJ

19

1B

17[i0
l6(ii)

2,786.91

.36
95

3,254.-26

3tL.62
7C9.3?

e,()9.21

2,4+'-1.68

6,6311.'1c)

98.68

3,037.69
326.72

1.f

777.67TOTAL ITY AND i,IABILITIES

AT(

I

(iD

r1,990.63

HYDENAI



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 3L,2022

[All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements

As per our report ofeven date
For MAfETI &CO.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 0 1 5975S

D'ticouqti6
KowshikAnna
Partner
Membership Number : 244772
Hvderabad
December 4zozz

For and on behalfofBoard

f.R*(-- .#
K.Ranganayakamma

Chairman
DIN:00033 569

I(.Ramachandra
Director

DII{:00060086

Particulars
Note
No.

For the year ended
March 37,2422

For the year ended
March 31,2OZl

I Revenue from operations
II Other income

20

21

33,086.00
91.2.72

22,027.65
L,476.87

III Total Revenue (I+lI) 33,t)98.72 23,504.52

IV Expenses
(a) Quarry expenses
(b) Consumption ofstores and spare parts
(cJ Cost of raw material consumed
(d) Purchaseofstock-in-trade
(e) Changes in inventories offinished goods and work-in-progress
(fJ Seignorage and Cess Fees

(g) Employee benefits expense
thl Finance costs
(i) Depreciation and amortisation expense

til Other expenses

22

23

24
25
26

27

4,353.75
5,526.70

639.43
453.89
,281 20

3,642.79
4,187.78

539.29
7,259.99
6,284.25

2,978.9L
2,809.67

468.73

275.00
(874.62)

2,097.72
4,104.39

499.27
1,471.94
4,602.17

Total Expenses (lV) 27,l(t8.47 18,432.52

5,O72.OOV Profit before tax (III- ry) 6,830.25

VI Tax expense

[a) Current tax

[bJ Deferred tax

28
1,770.25

[31.82)

1,545.00
(188.0e)

1,356.91Total tax expense 7,738.43

3,775.O9VII Profit after tax for the year

VIII Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(iJ Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

[ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

5,091.82

7.95

[2.00)

(22.67)

5.68

(16.991Other Comprehensive lncome after tax for the year (VIII) 5.95

5,097.77IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII) 3,698.10

X Earnings per share (Par value ofRs.10O each)

[aJ Basic

[b) Diluted
6,851.86
6,851.86

4,429.77
4,429.'t7

ffi, ,



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the March3L'2022
(Allamounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share caPital

AmountNumber ofShares

91,34,300
(17,03,000)
74,31,300

91,343
(17,030)

7 4,3',13

As at March 31^,2O2O

Changes in equitY share caPital

As at March 31.,TOZL

esine share
0074,3L3

As at March 3 2022

ul
Reserves and

Capital Forfeited
shares

Capital
Redemption

Reserve

General
reserve

Retained earnings
Total Other

Equityreserve

Balance as at April 0L,2020
on account of lvlerger[Refer Note No.

3B)

Buyback of equity shares, including tax thereon

Total comprehensive income for the year

a) Profit for the Year
b) Other comprehensive income for the year,

net of income tax

175.81

0.75

0.66 1.00 2,351.30

77,03 (e44.1.6)

19,65r.40

(80.e3)

3,7't5.09

(16.ee)

22,tBO.77

(80.18)

(927.13)

3,7L5.09

(16.ee)

24,A70.96
2027Balance as at March 3 176.56 o.66 18.03 7,107.14 23,268.57

Balance as at APril 07,2021
Total comprehensive income for the year

a) Profit for the Year
b) Other comprehensive income fbr the year,

net of income tax
Total (a+b)

L76.56 o.66 18.03 1,407.L4 23,268.57

5,091.82

5.95

24,870.96

5,O97.82

5,097.77 
|

I

5.95
s,097.77

Balance as at March 3 1, 2 02 2 L76.56 o.66 L,407.14 28,366.34 ,968.73

B. Other

18.03

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements

Nature and purpose ofreserYes
(i) Capital reserve

capital reserve represents share application money received from allottees and fbrfeiture due to non paymcnt of remaining call money within

due date as Per terms of issue'

(ii) General reserve
General reserve is used for strengthening the financial position ancl meeting future contingencies and !osses'

(iii) Retained earnings

This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the company. It includes land :'evaluaticn amourrt of Rs. 5,708 lakhs on IIld AS uansition

date which will not be available for declaration of dividend as per Companies (Declaration and payment of DividendJ Rules, 2014'

(iv) Capital RedemPtion Reserve

capital redemption reserve is created when a company purchases its own shares out of free reseryes A sum equal to the norninal value of the

shares so purchased is transferred to capital r.du.ption reserve. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions ofsection 69

of the Companies Act, 2013.Capital redemption reserve is not freely available for distribution'

As per our report of even date
For MAJETI &CO.,

Chartcred Accountants

Firm's Registration Number:01 5975S

For and on behalf of Board

D'ho,oq*6' |1-R,-*1--- +--
KowshikAnna
Partner
Mernbership Number : 24477 2

Hvderabad

oecemberLzozz

K.Ranganayakamma
Chairman

DIN:0003356?

Director
DIN:00C60086HYDTRI .\



For the year ended
March 31,2021

For the year ended
March3L,2022Particulars

1,477.94
499.27
'r 16.00

73.6+
(t8.77)
29.99
t7.26

473.4-'1.

245.43

(100.44)
(26.08)
(2s.00)
(25.48)

3.01
(44.3s)

(0.06)

5,072.00

(49.34

(22.r8)
7.65

22.98
34.73

372.67
723.43
(s1.61)
(10.2e)

6,830.25

(23.00)

(0.s 1)
(L42.94

1,,259.99

539.29
(1.17)

Cash fl or,l' from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustmenm for:

Depreciation anC amortisation expense

Finance costs
(Profit)/Loss on sale of assets (net)

Unrealised foreign excnange (gain)/ loss (net)

Net (gain)/loss arising on financial assets measured at FVTPL

Bad debts rvritten off
Rook deticit on asscts discarded

Provision for expected credit losses

Provision for doubtful debts
Loss on sale of Investments
BenefiLs accrued on Key Man ittsurances

Provision no Ionger required written back

Profit on redemption of non current investments

[.'air value gain on foreign exchange forward contracts (net)

Provision fol doubtful debts no longer required written back

Balances rvriffen fback J/ off (rtet]

Dividend inccme
Interest irrcome

7,592.43a,939.29

(73s.30J
(1,243.13)
t,119.79

(1,833.35)
+.27

3,795.45

Change in operating assets and liabilities
Trade receivabics ancl oLiter assets

Inventcries
otler liabilities and rovrsrons

before

Trade
6,733.7910,905.66

{2,1s2.77) (r,278.s2)
s,455.27

activities

activities

Cash
Income t3x

Net cash

from
aid

ttom

(2.?8)
12.08

(729.04)
0.()6

(3,042.98)
166.07
L54.96

(zre.96')

(4,139.19)
41A.9i
123.43

(2?.4.95)
(e76.s8)

(1,774.32)
4 6.50

(1,260.9s)
0.51

752.49

(s43.24)

(451.22)
2L7.63

L,t55.62
(e69.61)
(944.17)
(410.00)

.1

509.7
(776.83) (r,677.86 )-

1,16.22

268,81
L67.4L
385.C3
s46.44 385.03

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of proper$, 1-rlant and equipment & Capital work in progress

Sale proceeds ftom propeny, plant and equipment
Sale proceeds fronr rton current Investments

Investrnent in Subsicliary
Investn'ent rn Mutual Funds and other Companies
Change in bank l.alances (having original maturity of mcre than tlrree months) (net)

lnterest reccivcd
Loan given to subsidiaries and Other Paries

Cash flows from financing activities

IRepaynelrt)/ Proceeds of non current borro'wings []retl

IRepayment)/ ProcecCs of culrent borrowings (net)

Paymcr:.t of buyback of equity shares (including tax)

Repalment of lease liabilitY

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Net cash outflow

cash inflow from finan activities

Cash and cash uivalents at the

Dividcnd income
activities

Finance costs

of the
at end oftheCash and cash

MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE TIMITED

Statement ofCash florvs for the year ended llarch 37'2022

amounts in INR unless otherwise

Notes:
L. The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect methcil as set out in Indr.an Accounting Starrdard (lr.d.4S 7)- Stateinent

cf Cash Flows.

2.Taxes paid are treaied as arising from operating activities.

The accompanying notes arc an intcgral part ofthe financial statemenis

As per our report of even date
For MAIETI &CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Fi)-m's Regictration Nt:mber:3 1 5975S

D'(e,Dqkq
KowshikAnna
Partner
Membership Number : 244172
LivderabaC

t-ticember2zo'z'z

For anC on behalf of Board

H.Ranganayakamma
Chairman

DIN:00033569

KRamacltandra
Director

DIN:00060086

tl,-Bo
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MIDWEST GRANITB PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statemeuts
(AIl amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

1.1 Midwest Granite Private Limited (the Company or MGPL) is a Private limited company
incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 with the
objectives of engaged in the business of (i)quarrying, manufacturing and processing
and selling of Granite and; [ii) manufacturing of diamond wire rope; having its
registered office at Hyderabad in the state of T'elangana, India.

1.2 Midrvest Granite Private Limited vr,as incor:porated on 1,1.1,2.198i.

1.IJ Thesc Standalone financial statements are approved and autl-rorizecl fbr issue by the
Board of Directors on December _- 2022. '

2. Significantaccountingpolicies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adollted in the preparation of
these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1Basis of Preparation of standalone financial statements

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial staternents cqmply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(lnd r\S) notified under Section 1 3 3 of r!:re Companies Act, 2013 [the Act) Companies flndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other r'elevant provisions of the /rct.

(ii) Historical cost cont ention
'l'he financial staternents have been prellared as a going conccrn on accrual basis of
accounting. 'fhe company has adopted iristorical cost basis for assers and liabiliiies except
for cerrain items which have been measured on a dif?'erent basis anrl suci:'oasis is clisclosed
in the relevant accounting policy.

(iii) ftterger

The merger has been accounted for unier 'Pooiing ot'lnterest Metliod' as prescribed uncler'
,\pperrdix C of Inriian Accounting Standarri (lnd ASJ 103 - Rusiness Cr:urtrinatious.
Acurlrciiirgly, prior -years' tinancial infcrrnatiolr irr the tinanci.al st.ttenlents have heeu
restated. (refer Note 3B w.r.t. merBer detaiis)

(iii) F.leiv ctandards and amendmeirts
'[he Compani/ applied for the first-time certain stanriards anC anrerrrdment.s, r,.rhich are
eff'ective fr:r aunual periods beginrring oh or after April 1, ?02l.I'he Corrrpany has not early
adopted any other standard or amendntent that has heen issued t,ut !s not yet effective:

a. Jnterest Rate Benchrnark Refornt - Phase 2 : Amendrnents to Inci AS 109 - Financial
Instruments, Ind AS 107 - Financia! Instruincnts: Disclosures, Ind AS 104.- Iusurance
Contiacts al:d Ind AS 116 - Leases.

b. Cr-rnccptuirl fran:ework for financial repoi-rinll undcr hlrl AS issi:r:,'i Ly ICr\i
c. Inci AS I 03: Llusiness conrbinat;orr
ci Amendnle;tt to Ind AS 103- Bu.siuess cornbina+;ion, I:rd AS 11ti - CO\riD-19 i"elated rcnt

coiices;sicns, tnd AS L05 - Non-current Assets lrehl for sale and .I)iscontillucrt Operaticus,

('
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MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statemints
(All amounts in INR, unless btherwise stated)

., .,

2.3

Ind AS 16 - Property Plant and Equipment and Ind AS 28 - Investments in Associates and

f oint Ventures.
These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company

(iv) Reclassification consequent to amendments to Schedule III

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule III to the companies Act,2013 on

24th March 2021to increase the transparency and provide additional disclosure to users of
financial statements. The amendments are effective from 0L April 2A21.

Consequent to the above the company has classified current maturity of long-term
borrowing borrowings (including interest accrued thereon) to short-term borrowing from
oth er fi n an ci al liabil iry-.

(v) Current and non-current classification

An asset is classified as current, if
ti) It is expected to be realized or sold or consumed in the company's normal operating

cycle;

[ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii) It is expected to be realized r,.rithjn trvelve months after the reporting period; or
(iv) It is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted frorn being exchanged or used to

settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non -current.

A liability is classified as current, if
til It is expected to be settled in normai operating cycle;
(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
[iii) It is expected to be settled vr,ithin twelve months after t]re reporting period;

[iv) It has no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Ali assets and liabilities have been r:lassiflecl as r:urrent or non-current as per company's
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule-lll of the Companies Act, 2013. Based

on the nature of business, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpcse of current or non-current classification of assets and iiabilitjes.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a rnanner consistent with thc internal reporting
provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsiblt: for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segrnenis. The Whole Time L\irector
has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker. Refer Note 35 for the segment
information presented.

Foreign currency transactions

a) Functional and presentation burrenr:5,

Items included in the financial statements of the Conrpany are measurcd using the currency
of thc prirnary economic environment in which lhe €ntily Llperates ['the functional
currency'). Indian Rupees is the functional currency of the conlpany. The financial
statements and allfinancial information are t'resenteri in Indian rupee (ll.lR).

\
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MIDWEST GRANITE PITIVATE LIMIT'ED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statcments
[All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated]
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b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates ofthe transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency, using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was deternrined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are repofted as part of
the fair value gain or loss.

c) Derivatives

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward exchange contracts to
hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivatives are initially recognised at firir value and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reuorting period. The
resulting gains/losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss immediately.

2.4 Critical estimates and iudgements
The preparation of financial statements recluires the use of accounting estimates which,
by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise
judgement in applying the Company's a.ccounting policies.

This note provides an overview ofthe areas that involved a higher degree ofjudgenrent
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those criginatly assessed.
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgernents is included in relevant.
notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item
in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

o Estimation of expected credit loss on financialassets - Note 31[A) (l).
o Useful life of Property, Plant & Equipn'rent.- Note 2.7
. Recogrrition and measurement of defined benefit obligations - Note 2.16
o Estimation of current tax expense a.nd pal,able
r Estimation of uncertainties relating tr lire global health pandentic from COVID-l9

(covrD-19) - Note 31(D)

Estimates and judgements are continuaiiy evaluated. They ar'e based on historical experience
and other Factors, including expectations of future e'/ents that may have the financial impact
of the company and that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances, Estimates
and ludgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
Factors, including expectations of future events that rnay have the financial impact of the
company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstairces.

2.5 Revenuerecognition

Sale of Products - Recognition & Measurernent
Revenue from the sale of products is r ecognised at the point in time when the products are
delivered to the customer [as it coirsidererl as that customer ha:; obtained tire control /
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Iegal title has been transferred) as per the terms of the con[ract. Revettue is measured
based on the transaction price, which is the r:onsideration, adjusted fbr volume discounts,
service lcvel credits, performance bcnuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as

specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected fronr
customers.

The Cornpany's customers pay for products received in accordance with payment terms
that are customary in the industry and do not have significant financing components.

For rei,enues disaggregated by geography and timing of recognition [refer note 20]

Dividend income
Dlvidcnti incorrre on investments is accounted for vviten the riglrt to receive the payment is

establisheri, r,vhich is generally when shareholders approve the dividend. Dividend income
is ir:cluded in Other Income in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Interest Income

Interest income on all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is
recognised using the effective interest rate [EiR) method. is recognised in the statement of
profit and ioss as part of other incorne'.

Interest income is calculated by appiying the effective interest rate [o the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset except fcu' financial ussets that subsequt:ntly become credit
impaired. For credit impaired financial assels, the etlective interest r-ate is applied to the
net carq,,ing amount of the financial asset [after deduction of the expected credit loss).

2.G Leases

As a lessee

The Company accounts for each lease coraponent within the contract as a lease separately
from non-lease comp()nents of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the ncn-lease ccmpouents.

The Comoany recognises right-ol:use asset representing its right to use the trnderlying
assct for the lease terrn at the lease cornmencenrent date. 'l'he cost of fhe right-of-trse asset
me;rsrrred at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabiliry adjusted for any lease pa',rments nrade a.t or trefore the commencement date less
any l33ta incentives recei.led, plus any init ial direci costs irrcurreci and an estimate of costs
tr, he incurred iry the lessee in dismantling anri removing the underlying asset or restoring
the uuderiyiug asset or site on which it rs iocar-ed. The right-of-use assets is subsequc-:ntly
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any
and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liabilig. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter
of lease term c.i' useful life of rlght-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of use
assets are determined on the sarne basis as ttrcse of propertv, plant and equipment. Right-
of-use assets are tested for inrpairnrent vrhenever there is any inciication that their carrying
amounts n'Iay not be recoverable. Impairrnent loss. if any, is recogui:;r:tl in the sratenrent of
profir an.C loss.

'[he Cornpany measures the lease.'liabilitl at the present value of tire lease payments that
ai"e not paicl at the commencenrent date of the lease. TIte lease pa-vments are discounted
using the interest rate irnplicit in the lea.se, if chat rate cdn be readily determined. lf that
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rate cannot be readily determined, the Ccrnpany uses incretnental borrowing rate. For
leases ,vrrith reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may

adopt either the incremental borrorving rate specific to the lease or the incremental
borrorruing rate for the portfolio as a wliole. The lease payments sirall incltrde fixed
payments, variable Iease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase

option rvhere tire Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of
penalfies for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exerci:;ing an option
to terminate the lease. The lease iiability is subsequently rerneasured by increasing the
carrying amount to reilect interest on the lease liability, reducing the ca:'rying atnount to
refiect the lease payments made and remeasuring che carrying amoun[ to reflect any
reasscssment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance tixed iease

payments. The company recognises the amcunt of the re-rneasurement of lease liabrlity
dus to modification as an adjustmerrt to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and

loss dr:pending upon the natrlre of nicdiiication. Where the carrying amot:nt of t-he rlght-
of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the
lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
statement of profit and loss,

As a lessor
At the inception of the Iease the Ccmpany classilies each of its leases as ejthei ati operating
IL'ase or a finance Iease. The Company recognises lease payments re'ceived utidei operating
leases as income on a straight- line basis over the legse tet'm. In case of a finatrce lease,

finance incorne is recognised over fhe lease term basgr! ori a pattet'n reflecting a constant
periorlic rate of return on the lessor's net investinent in the lease. Wiren ihe Company is an

intermediatc k:ssor it accounts fbr its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease
separately, It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease vvith reference to the right-of-
usl asset arising fi'cm the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head
lease is a short terni lease to which the Companlr applies the exemptior-r descri'ned above,

then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

ii Recognition and measurement

The initiai cost of property, plant and uquipmunt coinprises its pilrchase'pl'ice, rncluding
import ciuties and non-refundabie purchase taxes, ancl anlz directly a'ctributable costs of
bringing an asset to workirrg conditicn and iocation for its intended use. It alsc iltcludes
the initjai estimate of the costs if any of dismantllng;rud. r'ernoving the item anC restoring
the site on which it is located. Items such as spares are capitahzed when they tueet the
definition of property, plant and equipnrcnt. If significarrt parts of an item of prcllerf.v,
plant aird equipment have different useftrl Uves, then they are accounted fot'as separate
items [rnajor cornpcnents) of property, plant and ecluipment. Like\,ise, erpenditure
torvirrds malr-.r inspections and overhauls trre iderriified rs a scparal-e ccmpcncnt attrl
cieprecia.ted.orzet the expected pericd till the next overhaul expenditure.

ii) Suliseqi:c.ntexpenditure

SuDsequent costs are included in the assei-'s calrying amount ui recogni:;ed as a sepal'?ite

assr-,t-, as appi'.ipriate in propertr/, plarrt anC cqniprnent the cost of repiacilrg part ol'sucit
an item when ihe cost is incured if tl'le recoguised criteria al'e met. The carrying arnouut
of ;u:y component accounted for as separate asset is derecogniscd $'Jren lepiaced. All
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other repairs and maintenance are charged to proflt or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

iii) Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equiprnent is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefit is expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain
or Ioss arising on de-recognition of rhe asset [calculated as the difference betrrreen the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profi'; and lcss in
the period the item is derecognised.

iv) Depreciationexpense

Depreciation is charged on straight Iine basis so as to rvrite off the deprcciable amottnt of
the asset over the useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Act. The usetul life of the
assets is periodically reviewed and re-determined based on a technical evaluation and
expected use.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

Leasehold improvements and Leasehold Land are anortised over the lease period.
Deprecation is provided at one hundred percent for assets costing lsss than Rs.5000/-

2.8 Intangible assets and amortization

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognitiort at cost, Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulateri amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Nature of Asset Useful Life
3 YearsSoftware

The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounteC for on a

prospective basis,

2.9 Financiallnstruments

Classification, initial recognition and measurelnent

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity and
a tinancial liability or equity instrument for another entity. Financial instruments a.re

recognized on the balance sheet rvhen the Company becomes a pafty to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

(i) Financial Assets
Classification:

The Company classifies its financiai assets in the fcllowing measurement categories:

. those to be measured subseQuentl5r at fair value [either throug]r olher cornprehensive
income, or through profit or lo:;s), and

. those measured at amortised cc.sL.

o U--
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The classification depends on the entity's business model for nranaging the financial assets
and the contractual ternrs of the cash flora's.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or other cornprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this wlll depend on
the business model in which the inrrestment is held. For investments in equity instruments,
this lvill depend on whether the Company has naade an irrevccable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair rralue through other
comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments rvhen and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

At initial recognition

The Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement - Detlt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt insrruments depends on the Comjrany's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the group classifies its debt instrurnents:

i. At amortised cost: Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal anci interest or1 the principal
outstanding and that are held vvithin a business model whose objective is to hold such
assets in order to collect such contractual cash florvs are classified in this category.
Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methoC
less any impairment losses.

ii, At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive incorne if these financial assets are
held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows on specified dates that are solely payment of principle and interest on the principle
amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

iii" At fair value through profit or loss (FWPL): Financial assets are measured at fainralue
through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value tirrough cther
comprehensive income on initial recognition, The transactioir costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are lmmediately
recognised in profit or Ioss.

lnvestments in subsidiaries, joint ventrlres and associates

Investment in subsidiaries, Joint ventures anC associates are measured at cost less
impairment loss, if any.

Other Equity Investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss, except tbr those equity investments for rt hich the Company
has elected to present the value changes in 'Other Conrprehensive Income'.

H
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MIDWEST GRANITE, PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes anncxed to and forlniug part of the Financial Statements
(All amourrts irr INR, urrless otherwise stated]

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalent in the balance sheet connprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-terrn deposits with an origirral maturity of three months or',ess, which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-ternr deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
r:orrsidere:d an integral part of the Company's carsh management.

Trade recei.vdbles

Trade receivables are lecogniseri initially at fair vaiue anci subsequently measured at
amorrised cost uslng the effective interest rnethod, less provision for irnpairment.

(ir) Financial liabilities
Classlfication, initia.l recognition alrd measurenrent

Ftnancial liabilities are classified, at iiritial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair valuc
throuqh profit or losS, Ioans and borrcungs, or payables, as appropriate. All financial
liahilities are recognised initially at fair value anC, in the case of loans and borrovuings and
payables, net of directly attributable transactiorr costs. The Company's financial iiabilities
include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

Filtancizil Iiabilities are carried at amortized cost trsing tire effective inter'est rnethod. For
trade and other payables maturing within one year frcm the baiance sheet ciate, the
cal'ryitlg atnounts approximate fair value dlre to the short nraturity of these irrstruments.

Tracle anri cther payables reprei;en',: liabilities for goods anri services prior to the end of
finaiicial year w'hich are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities uniess payment is not due within 12 mcnths after the repol'ting period. They are
reccgnised inirially at their fair value and subseqLrently irreasured at amortised cost using
the eft'ective interest method.

Loans and bonrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair r/alue, net of transaciion costs incurred.
Bor:rowings are srrbsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeCs [net of transaction costs) and the redernption amount is recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the eff'ective interest method. Fees paid on the
estal:hshrnerrt of loan facilities are recognisecl as transaction costs of tlie loan to the extent
tliat it is probable tliat some or all of the facilitl,'.sill be drawn dovrn. In this case, the fee is
defcreii urrtil the draw dowrr occurs. 'l'o the extent there is no eviderrce that it is probable
'chat solne. or all of the facility lvill llc drarvrr dor,vn, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment
for iiqrridity services and amortised ovei the period of the fat:iliqr to whjch it relates.

Dei:ecognition of financial instrurnents

The Conrpany derecognises a finaricial asset w'h.en the contractual rigqhts to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or vrrhen it transfers the financial asset ancl substantially al! th.e risks
and rerurrards of ownership of the assetto anrit(rer pal'ry.On Ce-recogriition of a financial
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asset tht: difference between the carrying aniount and the consicleratiorr receiverl is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

1'he Colnparty derecognises fina,rcial liabilities wiren, and only 'wilen, the Company's
obiigatrons are discharged, cancelled or have expired. On de-recognition of a financial
liability the difference between the carrying anrount of the financial iiabiliry derecognised
and tltc r:onsideration paid and payable is recogirised in the s[atement of profit and loss.

Offst'tt.ing tinancial instruments

Financial assets ar,d liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the halancr: sheet
wbere ther,: is a legally enforceabie right to cffset the recognised amor.rnts unri there is an
intention to'seLtle cu a net basis or lealise the asset and settle the Iiabrliqr simultaneotrsly.
'l'he legaily enforceable right must not be contingent cn future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of busirress and in the event of default, irrsolvency or
bankruptcy ofthe group or the counterparty.

Finanr:ial guara ntee contracts

The iair vaiue oi financial guarantees is determineC as the present vzilue of the difference
in net cash llows betr,veen the contractual payments under the debt in:;trument and the
payments that would be required rvithout the guarantee or the estirnated :n'rount that
would bO pay;.rlile to a third party fcr assurning the obligations.

,{s Guarantor

l;inancial guara:ltee contracts are recognisecl as a firrancial liability ai the i:irne the
guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measursd at fair value an.l subscquently at the
irigher of the alnount determined in accortjance with Ind AS 109 and the amount initially
recogrLised Iess cumuIative amortisatiorr,'/vheril appropriate.

\ry'here guarantees. in relation to loans or other payables of associar:es are provided ior no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of
the cost of the investment.

As Beneficiarlr

Irinancjal guarantee contracts are recognisetl as a finaneial asset at the time the guarantee
is tal<en. The asset is initially measured at fair value an'i subsequentl5, nrno.arred over the
guarantee period.

'il/here guarantees in relation to loans or othcr i-lryahles are pr'ovicled by compa.nl'fcr nrr
compensation, the fair values ai'e ac('oun..ed for: as coutrihutions and recognised as part of
equity.

Z.LO Impairmcnt of Assets

Financial assets
'l'he Comparly assesses at each date of balance shect impainnent, if arry, of a financial assct
or a group or'firiancial assets. The conrpany 5,r"0, ilr accordance with Irid AS 109, 'Expected
(lreiit Loss' [ECL) model, for evahrating impai.rn:trnt trf iinancial assets other than those
nieasurerl a[ tair value through profit arrd lol's (I,VTPL), E;tpecttld credit losses arr-.

Irip;tsul'i:d thl'cugh a ioss allon'ance at'an ari'rc'u:lr equal io:'l'he 12-morrths c:<pected credit
lossc:; [expecteci credit losses thar result frorn those defuult eve]tts cn the financial
instrument that are possible rt,ithin 12 rnonths after the repofting darc): or Full lifetirne
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expected credit losses [expected credit losses that result from all possible default events

over the life of the financial instrument).

For trade receivables Company applies 'simplified approach'which requires expected

lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company

uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade

receivables. At every reporting clat.e th.ese historical Cefault rates are reviewed and ctranges

in the forward looking estimates are analy-sgd.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide ior impairment loss where

there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk

full lifetime ECL is used.

Non-financial assets
property, plant and Equipment with finite liie are evaluated lbt'recoverabilitl'when there

is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable' If any strclt indication

exists, the recoverable amouni 1i.". t igt 
"r 

of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-

in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash

flort s that are Iargely independent ofthose from other assets. In strch cases, the recoverable

amourlt is cteterrninld forlhe cash generating unit tcGU) to which the asset belongs. If the

recoverable amouut of an asset or ctU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the

carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable alnottnt atld impairment

Ioss is recognised in the profit or loss.

2.11 liquity instruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residttal interests in the assets of the

Company aiter deducting all of its iiabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recortled at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

2.12 Inventories

Stores anrl spares are valued at lovrer of cost, calculated on weighted avet'age basis, and net

realisable value.

Finisl-red goods, Stock-in-trade and work-in-progress are valuetj at lcwer of cost arrcl net

realisablsvalue. Cost includes materials, direct labour, other direct costs and appropriate

portion of variable and fixed overireaci expenditure, computed orr normal capacity' Cost is

determined on a weighted average basis'

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in ttre ordinary coLtrse of business less

the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make lhe sale'

Obsolete inventories are identified and written down to net realisable value.

2.L3 Taxexpenses
Tax expense comprises of currerrt tax and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the

amount expected to be paid to tire tax authorities, based on estimated tax liability

computed after taking ciedit for allowances and exemptions in accordance with the

prevailing tax laws for the Year.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except wlten they relate to i[ems

that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the

inccme taxes are recognised in other comprehensive income or dit'er:tiy-, in equity,

respectively,
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Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in the statement of financial

position after off-setting the taxes paid or deemed to be paid and current income tax

expenses for the Year.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets

ancl liabilities are rEcognised for deductible and taxable temporary Cifferences arising

between the tax base of assets and liabilities anC their carrying amount, except when the

deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwiil or an asset or liabiiity in

a transaction that is noL a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxablc

profit or loss at the time of the transaction'

Deferred income tax asset are recognisecl to tl'le extent iL is probable that taxable profit will

be available against which the deductible te:nporary differer,ces ?r)d the carry forward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each repcrting date anC

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sutficient taxable profit will be

available to allow total or part of the cleferred income tax asset to be utilised'

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are meilsured using sttbstantively enacted tax rates

expected to apply to taxable income in [he years in which the temporary differencer; are

expected to be received or settled'

Deferrecl Tax Assets include Minimum Alternative Tax [MAT) paicl in accordance with the

tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability

of set off against future income tax iiabiliry. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax

asset in the Balance sheet when tl:e assei can be measurecl reliably and it is probable that

the future economic benefit assoclatecl..ruith the asset \ rill he realized'

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset rvhen it relates to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and

Iiabilities on a net basis

2.14 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset

provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation [legal or

ccnstructive) as a re"sult of a past ei/ent, it is probable that arl outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision

is presented in the statement of profit and lois net of any reimbul'setltent' If the effect of

the time value of money is materiil, provisions are d-'tcrmined b1' discottnting the expected

future cash fior,r,s at a pre-ta*.rt.ihrt rcflects cufl'ent rnarket assessmellts of the time

value of money and, whLre appropriate, the risks specific to the liability' Where discounting

is used, the increase in the proririo, due to the passage oi time is recognised as otlter

finance exPense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events lvhose existetrce

will be clonfirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or nlore uncertain future

events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligatiorr that is not recognized

because ii is not probable that an outflow of resources will be requirt:ci to settle the

obligation. A contingent liability also arises in e>rtrernr:ly rare cases v'rhere there is a liability
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that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measures reliably. The Company does not

recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements'

Acontingentassetisnotrecognisedunlessitbecomesvirtuallycettainthatanirrflowof
economic benefits will arise. f,ii',*, an inflow of economic benefits is probable' contingent

assets are discloserl in the financial statements. Contingent Iiabilities and contingent assets

are reviewed at each balance sheet date'

2.15 ErnPloYee benefits

(i) Short ternr employee benefit obligations

I,iabilities tor wages and salaries, including non-nronetary benefits that are expected to be

settled rvhcily within 12 months after the end of the period in whicli the ernployees render

the related service ,." ,".ognised in respect of employees' services- up to the e1d. ol the

reporting period and are measured at the amounts expeqted to be paid when the Iiabilities

are settled. The liabilities are presenterl as crlrrent employee benefit obligations in the

balance sheet'

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit ohligations

Theliahilitiesforaccumulatingcompensatedabsencesnotexpectedtobesettledr'r'holly
within 12 months after the "ni 

of the period in which the employees render the related

seruice are n)easured at the present value of expected future paynlents to be made in

respect of services provided using rhe projected unit credit method' The benefits are

discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting period that have

terms approximating to the terms of the ielate:d obligation. Remeasurenlents as a result of

experience adjustment, 
"na 

.t rnges in actuarial asiumptions are recognised in profit or

Ioss.

The obligations are presented as currerlt liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does

not have an unconditional .ighito defer settlement for at least twelve months after the

reporr:ing f eriod, regardless Jf ,"h"n the actual settlement is expected to occur'

(a) Definedbenefitplans-Gratuityobligations

'l'he liahility in respect of defined benefit plans ancl other post-employment benefits is

calculated using the projected unit credit methcd consisteni with the advice of qualified

actuaries. 
,l.he present rrtr" oltt e clefined benefit obligation is deterrnined by discounting

the estimated f*ture cash outflo',r,s using interest rates cf high-quality corporate bonds that

are denominated in the ."...r.v in wnicn the benefits rniill be paid, a'nd that have terms to

maturity approximating to the terms of tl:e related defined henefit obligation' The current

service cost of the defined beneflt plan, recogrrised in the statement of profit and loss in

employee benefir expense, reflects ihe increrre in the clefilred benefit obligaticn resulting

from employee service in the current year, betlefit changes' curtailments and settlements'

The interest cost is calculated by applying the cliscount i'ate to the balance of the ciefined

berrefitobligation.Thiscostisincludedinemplcyeebenefitexpenseinthestatementof
profit and lo-ss. Actuarial gains and losses arising f-,a1 

"*p".ience 
adjustments and changes

in actuarial assumption, ,." .h,.gec or crecliteti to eqrrity in other comprehensiye income

in the Period in which theY arise'

(b) Defined contribution Plans

providerrt Funcl: The company pays provident fttntl conlributions to publicly adntinistered

funds as per Iocal regula,ionr. inl co*p^ny has no furthcr payrnent obiigations once the

*
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MIDWEST GRANITE PIUVATE LIIVTITED

NotesannexedtoandforrningpartoftheFinancialstatements
[All amounts in INR, unless othe:v'rise stated)

contl.ibutions trave been paid. The contributio)1s are accoullred for as defined contl'ibution

plans and th-q contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are

due.

State plans: Empioyer's contribution to Employee State Insurance plan is charged to

Sta[ement ot Profit and Loss as and when due'

2.16 Divirlends
provision is made for the amount of any clividend declared, being appropriately autholized

ancl no longer at t)re discretion of tlre 
"ntity, 

and not distributed on or before the end of the

reporting icriod. Dividend is recognised as a Iiabilitv in the period in v'.rhich the interim

divjdenrls ,.u ,pp.oued by the Boaid of Directors, or in respect of the final clividend rvhen

aPProved b)' shareholders'

2.17 Eartrings Pel' sirare

Basic earnin-Es per share are calculated hy dividing the profit or loss after tax for the periotl

attributatrle io equity shareholders by the rveighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the Period'

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss af[er tax for the pericd

ailributablr: to equity sharehlolders and the weighted 
'ugla.g-" 

nurnber of shares

outsr.ailding durir.g tht periocl a.re adjusted for the effects of all dilutive pctential equitv

sli:rres.

2.,r.8 Commitments

C,.lrnnritments include bonds executed l,vjth erternal atrthcnties

2 ,19 Rounding of'amounts

Ali arnounts disclosecl in the stantlalcne frnancial st.atements and notes ha-'re been t'ounded

,ff to the ,earest lakhs as per the requirement. of Slch.eclrrle IIi, unicss ottrerwise s:tated'

2.?.0 Recent accolnting pronouncemellts (Standards issued but not yet effective)

Ind AS tr-r - Property Plant and equipmenl:

The amencim.ent clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the r:cst

of testing, if any, shall not be recognise d in the proiit or loss but cieducted from the directly

a:tributabl*.ort, considered as part of cost of an iten: of propeity-, plant, and equipment

InrI AS 37 - Provisions, contingent i.iahilities atrtl.contingent Assets

The an:encll,ent specifies that the 'ccst of fulfilling' a r:ontl'act t:ornprises the 'costs that

relate<iir.ectl1,toti","contract,.Cosl'sthatreiatedirectlytoitcontractcaneither'be
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract [exartpies wottld be direcl labour, m:ll'erialsl or

an allocatiou .rf orher costs that relate directl',, to iulfillirrS contracts; fan cxatrrple r"ould be

the allocation of tlre ciepreciaticn charge ibr a'n i[em cf Jrrcperty' plant arrd equiprnent tlsed

i;: iuitilling tiie contract.
i

)nC ^d.S 103: Busiriess combination
.lhe airien<]ment aclrl: a new excep:tion iu lntl AS 103 fcr lialrilities irnc contingent liatrilities

Y NTr

+ %
HYDERABAD
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MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financlal statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise statedl

Note 3: Property, plant and equlpment (Own Assets)

Notes to Property, plant and equlpment
1) Refer note 33 for disclosure ofcontractual commitments forthe acquisition ofproperty, plant and equipment.

2J Refer note 39 tbr information on property, plant and equipment provided as security by the company.

ah

Free hold Land
(Refer note il

below)

Improvements
to Leasehold

Premlses
Buildlngs

Plant and
Equipment

Minlng
Equipment

Furniture
and

Flxtures
Vehicles

Offlce
Equlpment

El ectrical
Installatlon

Computers
Water
works Total

capltal work-ln.
progress

Year ended March 31, ZOZL

Gross carrylng amount
Opening Gross carrying amount
Adjustment on account of Merger(Refer
Note No.38)
Additions
D isposals/Discard

a,247.07

L29.47
4.L9

776.60

19.34

689,0 5

4.00

602.71

418.3 9
24,55

7,672.37

2,262.02

99 5,09

L66.36

14,19
15.03

0.09

755.01

!6.70
27.37
16.3 0

173.54

18.53

6.09

0.05

337.27

6.3I
79.57

0.2 0

95.3 3

3.51
11.91

37.72

61.87

78.62

0.03

18,9L7.12

497.04
2,578,63
7,047.67

400,1 1

194.5 3

Closing gross carrying amount 8,372.35 195.94 693,0 5 1,045.65 8,879.24 L9S.+9 782.78 198.1 1 423.02 79.03 I0.46 20,945.72 594.64

Accumulated depreclatlon
opening accumulated depreciation
Adjustment on account of Merger(Refer
Note No,38)
Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals/Discard

56.33

4.62
77.75

221.82

17.58

43s.20

202.62
54.18

2,428.23

8+7,73
709.27

114.3 8

3.14
8.85
0.09

3 80.6 1

4.76
66.89

8.67

724,58

t7.26
76.7 6

0.05

1 62.05

3.11
28,73

0.19

78.72

2.30
7,95

30.13

20.77

4.07

4,022.69

231.8L

L,069.29
748,34

Closing accumulated depreciation 7A.70 239.40 692.00 2,566.75 726.28 443.59 15 2.55 193.10 5 8.84 2+.84 4,575.45

Net carrying amount as at March 31,
2021 a372.35 1r7.24 453.65 353.65 6,313.09 69.21 3 3 9.19 45.56 229.92 20.19 55.62 16,369.67 594.64

Year ended March 3L, ZO22

Gross carrylng amount
Opening Gross carrying amount
Additions
D isposals /D isca rd

8,372.35
647.7 5

195.94 693.05
470.17

1,045.65

377.t4
273.68

8,879.24
7,545.67

71A.29

195.49
s.49

782.78
30.36

1 00.2 0

198.1 1

6.81

t6.79

423.02

3 9.19

79.03
9.69

3 3.99

I0.46
14.24

20,945.12
3,086.40
1,082.9 5

s94.64
848.1 0

594.64

Closing gross carrying amount 9,02 0.10 79s.94 1,1 53.1 6 t,749.71 9,706,57 2 00.98 7t2.94 1 88.13 462.2"J. 54.73 e4.70 22,948.57 848.1 0

Accumulated depreclatlon
0pening accumulated depreciation
Additions
Disposals/Disca rd

75.70
t7.75

239.40
3 1.14

692.00
65.87

L92.O?

2,5 66.15

993.L7
326.L8

126.24

9.27

443.59

57 .71

83.63

15 2.5 5

17.?7

16.08

193.1 0

32.06
58.84

9.72

32.33

24.84
+,97

4,575.45
1,2 38.1 5

650,?4

Closing accumulated depreciation 96.45 270.54 5 65.85 3,233.L4 735.49 4L7.67 15 3,68 lt5. lb 3 5.63 29.75 5,163.3 6

Net carrying amount as at March 31,
2022 9,0zo.to 99.49 492.6? 583.26 6,473.43 6s.49 295.27 34,45 237.O5 19.10 64.95 77,7A5.21 848.10



MIDWEST GP.ANITE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial statements

[All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

of as at March 31,2022

of as at March 31

5)The title deeds of all the immovable properties {other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the

arg in the name for the

+Gross Carrying value excludes Revaluaticn Reserve

II (}
.o\

Amount in for

TotalMore than
3 Years2-3 years1- 2 YearsLess than

1 Year
848.10848.10

ended
[a) Projects in Progress

ects 848.10848.10

Amount in forwork-in-

TotalMore than
3 Years2-3 years1- 2 YearsLess than

1 Year
594.646.42154.58194.53 239.11

(a) Projects in Progress

Pro 6.42 594.64154.58239.11L94.53

Whether title deed irolder is a

promoter, director or relative of
promoter/ director or

ernployee of promoter /
director

Property held
since which

date
Reason for not being held in the

name of the company
Description

Gross cacrying vaiue

Title deeds held in the name
of

As at
March37,2O22

As at
March 31,2021

FreeHold Land

27.16
39.33

132.94
14.70

1.75

27.16
39.33

132.98
74.70

L.75

IzL,3B

Srrbhiksha Agro Farms Pvt ltd
Yarra Agro Estates Pvt ltd
Reliance Granite Pvt ltd

granite pvt ltd
lnd Natali Granite Lirnited
0

,I

No
No

No
No

No

From F'Y 2013-
14

For certain proPerties acquired
through alnalgamation/merger,
the name change in the name of

the CompanY is Pending

7.47

0.51
2.91

4.00
2.00

7.47

0.51
2.91

4.00
2.00

Not Applicable

No
No
No

No

No

From FY 20C1-

Front FY 2002-
From FY 2006-
Frcm FY 2009-
From FY 2011-

Title Deeds not available with the

ComPanY

Total* 354.L9 354.19

W _2



Software

Year ended March 31, 2021
Gross carrying amount
0pening Gross carryi;'tg amount 62.01

Closing gross carrying amount 62.O1

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge during the year

58.15
0.43

accumulated 58.58

Net carrying amount as at March 37,2021 3.43

Year ended March 3 L, 2O22

Gross carrying amount
0pening Gross carrying amount
Additions during the year

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciatiott
Dcpreciation charge duritrg the yeai
Cl<rsing accumulated depreciation

62.01

62.O1

58.58
0.33

58.91

Net carrying amount as at year ended March 31,2022 3.10

MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statettlents
(AlI amounts in INR Lakhs, unless ctherwise statedJ

Note 4A: I

Note: 48 Rigirt of use assets

362.73 352.73

The Cornpany has entered into ieases for its mining Equiprnertt anC leasehrrl<i lands. Lease of Minirrg Equipment's are generally have lease

termi of 3 years arrd la:rtis gcnerally have lease terins of 33 yea;s.

'fitc Cornpany also has certain leases of buildings and mining equiplnent with lease terms of 12 months or less and lertse of office

cquipment's with low value. '[he Company applies the 'short-term lease' and 'lease of low-value assets' recognition exentptions for these

ihe weighted avcragc incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet at the date of initial
application is'1.'r 5o/o.

Note: 4C I.ease liabilig
Set out belo.,v are the cat

Opening Balances of I.ease Liability
of interest

amounts of lease Iiabihties and tlte movenlents the

P

Balances Lea;e

Refer significant accounting policies for approach followed by the Cornpany for h'ansition to lnd AS 11 6.

a) Thcrc arc no restr'ictions or covenants imposed by lease:;,

bJ Refer note 26 for rentai expense recorded for short-terrn leases anci lour value lcases fol the year errded 31 March2022 and for the

year encled 31" March 2021.
cJ There are no arnounts payabie toward variable lease expense reccignised for the year ended 31. March2022 and for the year cnded 31

March 2021.

d) lhg-lnaturiry analy5l5 oflease liabilities are disclosed in rrote .

e) There ;,re no leases r,vhich have Rot yet commencr.:d to v.rhich the lessee is committed (if anv).

Particulars

Ycar ended March 31, 2021
Additions

Land Mining EquiDment Total

427.26

127.26

826.48

926.48

7,253.74

t,2s3.?4Closing qross carrying alnount

Accumulated tlcpreciation

Net carryinq amount as at March 3l,2O2l

2t.5L
21.57

445.77
380.71

467.28
402.22

43.02 a.26.48 869.50

384.24344.24
Year ended March 3 l, 2O22
AdCitions
Closing gross carryinA amount

+27.26 4',27 26

427.26 427.26

43.02

27.57

43.02

21.51,

54.53 64.5'3

As at
March31,2O22

As at
March 31.2021

395.44
14.56

---:141qlE

\
rK

carrying amount

ClosiriLe

A ccumulated depreciation
Dcnreciation for the velrr
Closins accumulated denreciation
Net carrvinp amount as at March 31.2022

u_-"



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements

[All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Non-Current Investments

lnvestment in equity instruments (Unquoted):
-ln Subsidiaries (at cost unless stated otherwise)
Reliance Diamond Tools Private Limited
23,50,000 (2021: 23,50,000) Equity Shares ofSrilankan Rs.10/- each, fully paid

Andhra Pradesh Granite (Midwest) Private Limited
84,99,990 (2021:84,99,990) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid

BEML lvlidwest Linrited
66,77,200 (2027: 66,77 ,200J Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Less: Inrpairment in value of investment

Midu,est Holdings Lirnited
78,79,514 (2021: 78,79,574) Equity Shares of GBP 1/- each, tully paid

Smart Technologies Private Limited
9,77,499 (2027:9,79,499) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fuily paid

Less: Impairment in value of investment

Midwest Neostone Private Limited
87,10,000 (2021: 82,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, ftrlly paid

Midwcst Mining Private Limited
9,99,790 (2027:9,99,'l9O) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, tully paid

Less: lmpairment in value of investment

Midwest Quartz Private Limited
7,49,990 (2021: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid

Astral Granite Private Limited
7,49,990 (2C21: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid

-ln Joint venturc (at cost unless stated otherwise):
South Coast Infrastructure Development Company ofAndhra Pradesh Limited

25,000 (2027:25,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid

SMW Granites I.LP (at cost unless stated otherwise)
Name of the Partner -Share in Profit (%)
Midwest Granite Private Limited - 50%
Srikanth Daliy:r -50%

Total Capital of the l,LP - Rs.80,00,000

Invcstmcnt in equity instruments (Quoted):
-lu Subsidiaries (at cost unless stated otherwise)
Midwcst Gold Limited
23,09,500 (2027:23,09,500) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid

-ln Other Companies (at fair value through Profit and loss):
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited
5,200 (2027:5,200) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid

Grasim Industries Limitetl
1,500 (2021: 1,500) Equity shares of Rs.Z/- each, fully paid

Aditya Birla Caoital Limited
2,700 (2021:2,100) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid

-ln Mutual funds (at fair value through Profit and loss):
Reliance ETF Liquid BoES - Kotak Demat A/c
79484.706 Units of Rs.1000/- each, tully paid

Kotak Pre IPO Opportunuties Fund - Investment
501.031 Units of Rs.1000/- cach, fully paid

-ln Ottrer Companies (at cost unless stated otherwise)
National Stock Exchange Ltd
5500 Equity shares of Rs.1/- each, fully paid

Midwest Encrgy Private Limited
7,000 (.202L:2,70,080) Equity shares of Rs.10/-each, fully paid

Investment in prefcrence shares (Unquoted):
-ln Subsidiaries (at cost unless stated otherwise)
Midwest Energy Private Limitcd - Preference Shares of Rs.100 each (6,00,000Nos)

60,00,000 9%o Non-Cummulative Preference Shares ofRs.10/- each, fully paid

Midwest Holdings Limited
47,93,917 (2027: 47,93,977 J 14% Non- Cumulative Preference Sharcs of USD 1 each, fully paid

As at
March zo2l

s

)

\
)\

U

'\q
,oo)

As at
l[arch31,2O22

103.40

850.00

667.72
(567.72)

1,301.18

97.75
(e7.7s)

871.00

15.70

7_4.98

756.75

0.10

600.00

3,178.62

15.00

208.46

224.09

208.87

2.50

40.00

2+.97

2.26

103.40

871.00

246.97

3,178.G2

850.00

(10.2e)

224.09

1.0.+7

1,30 1.18

2.50

40.00

21.78

2.51

661.72
(661.72)

97.75
(e7.7s)

M_.=*



MIDWESt GR/llil fE i'lllVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statr'mr'nts

[r\ll amount in INR Lakhs, un]ess ot]retwise stated)

Investment in LLP (Unquoted):
-ln Subsidiaries (at cost unless stated otherwise)
Deccan Silica LLP

Name ofthe Partner - Share iu Profit (%)
Midwest Granite Private Limited -75%

Rama Raghava Reddy Kollareddy'20.50o/o
Ravindra Reddy Guntaka -2.25%

M.V.V. Nagi Reddy -2.2 5olo

Total Capital uf the LLP -Rs.73,48,095/-

in partners[ip firms (Unquoted):
(at cost unless stated otherwisc)
Baahula Mincrals
Name ofthe Partner -Share in Profit (0z6)

un arr Madhavarapt -ZSo/c

llahesh Rao Tannc.r: -2596

Ivi!Cv/cst Granite Private LinriteC -50%o

of

Note:5[i) Carryingvalueofinvestmentinequitysharesalls.lbsidiaries,itisatthecostofacquisition.

Note Non Current Fiitancial Assets

Totai fithcr Non Current

lriote 7: Dcferred Erx Asset.s / (Liebilities) (net)
Tht: b differences attributabl e to:

Note 7 (a): Deferred tax Acsets / (Liabilities) (net)
dittercnccs

Ncte : Reconciliatior: r,f

Opcning balance
Adiustnrent ox acicunt of lvterger(Refer Note No. 38)

Tax (incr>rne)r/expcn.ie ri.coi;nised in profit and Ioss

Tax
Deferred tax As!;et

273.28

243.46

31.87.

243.4.6

I

67.20
( 17.s 1)

188.09
5.63

,qW

As at
Nlarch37,2OZz

As at
March 31,2021

53.77

20.00 20.00

64.67

6925.+07,912.55
34.76

7,436.31
769.76
224.92

carrying arnoun: cf unquor-ed investments
amcunt of inrpair'nent

276.74
8,171.15

7liq.47
224.92

investments
Market value of quoted lnvestments (Other than Subsidiary)

amount of

As at
3 202?.

(Unsecure,J, Considered good)

Kcyman lnsuran.e pletnium and benefits receivable
CST receivablc

930.65
0.76

As at
liarcb 31,2O21

847.93
15.93

93t.41 857.86

As at
Marctr 31,2021

As at
March31,2O22

(3 s8.1 2)

631.40
[288.02]
531.48

243.46

Doferrecl tax lsset:
Arising on account of temp(,, ary dil-ferL'nces in:
Dcfcrred iax assot:

Net deferrctl t:x

lls at
llarch 3l,ZOZL

(66.87)
(272.40)

(8.7s)
(288.O2)

79.73

193,73
179.28

60.52
78.22

531.48

(1 13.08)
(?31.23)

(1 0.81)
(3 s8.1 2)

a7.27

797.74
724.58
Lsz.z).

82.20

As at
2022

B

Deferred tirx asset:
Expenses allowabic cn the basis ofpayment
Provision fJr iinpairrncnt of investments
Provision for expecied el'cdit Ioss allowances
Provisitrn for doubtf.rl dcbts
Provisiorr for" gratuity

rleferred tflx assets

Delerred tax iiabili,!;
on account cftemporary dilTerences in:

Propcrty, plant and cquipincnt
Keyman insurance premiunr ar,d ben('fits receivable
Fiuancial ass3ts r.-reasured at IiVTPL

2022
As at

Marcll 3

As at
2021

lncclne
273.24 ?43.46

(
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MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(Al[ amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated]

Note 8: Other Assets
Non-current assets

Current Assets

Note 9: Inventories at Lower ofcost and net realisable value

Noteg(aJ: Inventoriesarehypothecatedassecurityagainstworkingcapitalborrowings.
Note 9(b): The quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks are

Current

IRefer Note :39]
in agreement with the books of account other than those

as set out below

Note 1O: Trade receivables

:Trade Receivables are hypothecated witlr banks as security towards working cap

v
(

As at
March31,2O22

As at
March 31,2021

IUnsecured, Considered good)

Capital advances
Considered good

Considered doubtful
Less : Provision for doubtful advances

Advances other than capital advances:
Security deposits
Prepaid income tax (Net ofprovision for income taxJ

Other receivables
Considered good
Considered doubdul
Less : Provision for doubtful advances

7,792.79
407.77

(407.t7)

572.t5
584.23

73.34
65.00

(65.ool

L,24O.79

34.50
(34.s01

400.12
584.60

t4.47
65.00

t6s.00)
Total other non-current assets 2,962.51 2,27934

As at
March31.,2O22

As at
March 31,2021

(Unsecured, Considered good)

Advances other than capital advances:
Balances with government authorities

Considered good

Considered doubtful
Less : Provision for doubtful advances

Prepaid expenses

Supplier Advances (goods, services and expenses J

Considered good

Considered doubdul
Less : Provision for doubtful advances

1,280.35
53.94

Is3.e4]
248.48

7,329.72
140.98

(140.981

L,O75.89

315.14

1,O46.26

140.98
(140.981

Total other current assets 2,858.55 2,437.29

As at
March31,2O2Z

As at
March 31,2021

Raw Material
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Stores and spares

L67.50
22.97

2,t20.03
7,062.34

181.35
370.12

2,054.08
777.60

Total inventories 3,372.88 3,377.15

Included above, stock-in-transit
Finished goods 1.,339.42 1,541.38

Name ofthe Bank HDFC Bank Limited

limits sanctioned 5242.00 Lakhs

Nature of current Asset offered as Refer Note 15.2

Quarter ended
lune 30,
zo21

September
30.202L

December 31, 2021 March 31,2022

Amount disclosed as per quarterly return/ statement 2,527.71 1,701.85 1,867.58 5,440.89

Amount as books of account 2,452.64 7,6A?.5L 1,869.68 5,384.11

Difference 69.07 79.34 ( 2.1 0) 56.78

Reasons for difference
On Account of pend ing Reconciliation of customer balances at the time of

submitting returns to the Bank.

As at
ll|.arch31,2O22

As at
March 31,2021

3,340.32

(49s.001

2,727.O7

t460.27)

Trade receivables from contract with customer - Billed

Trade receivables from contract with customer - Unbilled
Less: Provision for expected credit loss (Refer Note:31(A)J

1,660.802,A45.32Toul current trade receivables
ital borrowings. [Refer Note :39J

{



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial staternents
(AIl amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

details

Trade Receivables as at March

of10

for from due date of

frorn due date
Note 10 Trade Receivables

Note 11: cash

Unsecured, considered good{'

I.oan to relJted pafties(Refer note: 37)
to other than related
Current loans

*[inancial assets carried at amortised cost

Note 13 : Others

Unsecured, considered good
Fonvard Contracr

Totsl others

March 3 ?o2L
for

t-2

483.t17

2.14

27876
147,67

209.77

with banks
-in Current Accounts

Cash on
cash and cash

+'fhere are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at thc end ofthe reportirrg period and prior period.

Note 12: Bank balances other than cash and cash
As at

2022

Note 1 : Loans

As at
March 3 2021

83.19

As at
Flarch 202

2,A84.25

+8.48

nh

As at
March3l,2O22

As at
ltlarch37,2O2L

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Doubtful

2,845.32

495.00

1,660.80

450.27

33+O.32 2,721.07

Lcss: allowances (4es.00J (460.27)

2,A45.32 1,660.80

Particulars
Not Due and

Unbilled
Less than
6 Months

uutstallul
6 months
- 1 Yeai

rg lor ro[ow

L-2 vear 2-3 Years
l[lore than

3 year Total

Undisputed
-Considered good
-Considered doubtful
-Credit impaired

Disputed
-Considered good
-Considered doubtful
-Credit impaired

1,1 65.90
0.47

7,213.25 175.25
4.75

1 19.59
1.50

40.65
9.26

190.68
35.93

443.09

2,A45.32
51.91

443.09

Particulars
Not Due and

Unbilled
Less than
5 Months

U ULSLdIIUI

6 months
- 1 Year 2-3 Years

More than
3 year Total

Undisputed
-Considered good
-Considered doubtful
-Credit impaired

Disputed
-Considered good
-Considercd doubtful
-Credit impaired

797.54 95.81 63.17
'l.rs

2.45

99.14
1,660.80

250.50

209.77

As at
l,iatch 3L,2O?,?

542.95
3.49

381.49
3.54

S4(t.44 385.03

lvlarch 2A?.L
As at

In fixed deposits with original rnaturity of more than three months bttt less than twolvc months
Balupces with banks to th-c extent helri as Margin money (On Letter of credtt and Battk Gttar'antees issued

20.05

63.74

Bank balanccs t,thr:r than cash and cash

27

1,e36.98

As at
Marcb31.,2O22

?.,597.26

857,73
5

2022
As at

Itlal ch 3
As at

25.48

25.4444.44

w-"

Total receivables

hv hank. ctc.. I
7.A64.16

1it,l



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE I,IMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
[All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 14 : Equity share capital
Authorised:

and firlly paid up :

As at March 37,2O2O
l\'iovement during the year (Buyback of equity shares )
.{s at lllarch 31,2021
Movement du the
As at March 3 2022

14.1 Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has ouly one t;lass of equity shares having face .,ralue of INR 1C0/- per share. The Ccrnpany declares and pay dividencl in Indian rupees. The
holdel of equity shares is entitled to riividend right in the same proportion to tnc. paid up capital. the dir,'i<ieud proposed by the Board of Directors is
stlbiect to approval of shareholders in the ensuring Annual General lr{eeEng excrfit incase of lnterim Dividend. In the cvent of iiquidation of the company,
the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive remainiug assets of the .ompany, after distribution of ail prr:l'erential amounts, in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by them. Every holder of equity shares p,-esent at a meeting in persorr or by proxy, is entitied to one vcte, and rrporr a poll
each share is entitled to one vote,

14.2 Details of shareholders rnore than 57o shares in

As at March 3l,2o2l
Number ofshares

. o/o hulding

14.3 Details of Brryback of equity shares
l)ttring the vear crtded March 31, 20)L,the Company concluded tire i.,rryback uf 17.050 erluiEy sh."rres as a.pprcved bythe Board of Directors on September
14,2020. This has resulteri iD a totai cash outflow of Rs.944.17 Lakhs/.(incluoing tax cn truybackof Rs.1Z7 g2La.khs/-),ln linenith the requirement of the
Compantos Act' 2073. total amoi.lnt has been tttilised from general reserve respectively. F'rrther, capital redenpticn reserve of p.s.17.03lakhs/-
[representingthe nominal valrte oftlte shares bought back) has heen createii as,li apporticnlnentfrcm retained ear.nings. Consequcntto such buyback,
the paid-up equity share capital has reCtrced by Rs. 17.03lakhs ,r-.

14.4 Disclosure of of Prorncters
As at Ma.'ch 3 2021

7o at total shares 7o Change durfng
the

64,886
37 31

()4,886

87.'sl

7,000
9.42

7,000
9..12

t5.940/o
-7.g'oqo

-2.Z9oto

-7.730/o

i.680/o
0.55%

-0.060/o

-0.O60/o

Mr K. Rama Raghava Reddy
M/s.M.V.V.Nagi Reddy (HIIF)
Mrs.M. Padmavati
Mrs. V.Prarneela Rani
Mr. G.Ravindra Reddy
I',!rs. K. Ranganayakamma
Mrs. K. Soumya
Mr, K. Ramacha.ndra

llote 15: Borrowings

-('fNon-Current

Secured:
From Banks
Fronr

otal
Less: Current maturit,es of long-ter:.rr Cetrt
i,css: ,Jnamortised

As at
2022

Iion-cument

N

W
HYDERABAD

\i..-\:

Number ofshares Amou

807.00
450,00

1,257.00

at March 31,2O2O
Movement on account of Merger[Refer Note No. 3g)
Movement during the year
As at March 31.,2O2L
Movement the

8,07,000
4,50,000

t2,57,000

As at March 3 2022 r2,s7,ooo t;257.OO

Nurnber ofshates Amount

97.34
(17.03)
74.5L

74,313

97,343
(1 7,030)

74,377

74.31

Mr. K. Rama
Pagltava Rtddv l\tr. G. Pavindra Beddy

As at March 3 2022

Promoter name thc

?ir Charige
during

64,886

7,000
2,227

100
100

87.i|lo/o

0.00o/n

0.400/o

0.000/i,

9.42o/o

3.40o/o

0.'130/o

a.\30/o

0.0Ao/o

o.000/o

0.009/o

0.005/o

O.00o/o

0.000,6

0,009/o

0.00%

No. of
shares

Yo of total
sharcl; No. ofshares

7,000
?.,227

100
100

87.il7o/o
(.).0c%

0.0Ao/t

0.Dao/o

9.42o/o

3.00o/o

0.L30/o

O.13o/o

2

As at
l{arch 3

350.18

4,525.99 4,6tr5.65
744.53

(1,86C.84J [2,095.39)
fees and othcr borrowinq Cost

u__-

3 03?.59

i*

64,886

4,89{r.53



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATD LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 15.1 Details of Non-current Borrowings :

[i) Term loans from banks
Terms of repayment:

Amount of
Instalment

due

Period of maturity
from balance sheet

date
Name of Financial Institution

Total No. of
Instalments due

Interest rate
o/o

Amount of
Loan

(a) Secured:
l.Against Hypothecation ofVehicles and personal guarantee by the Director ofthe ccmpany

HDFC Bank Limited 76.15 e'25

Axis Bank Limited 12'40 9'35

Yes Bank Limited 29.10 6 75

Axis Bank Limited 8.48 9'96

Bank Limited
Bank Limited
Bank Limited

2.Against Hypothecation ofMining Equipment and guaranteed by one ofthe directors ofthe company

HDFC Bank Limited 10 05 9'20 0'99

Axis Bank Lirnited 4+5'44 B'85 15'20

HDFC Bank Limited 450'00 9 50 86'47

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 111.60 1'7'17 14'28

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 74'00 11 08 11'65

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 55'80 9'00 2'84

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 38'50 B'90 3'01

Yes Bank 93 10 8'50 228l
IIDFC Bank Limited 189 38 11'10 78'59

Yes Bank 91'49 8'35 50'19

20.74
0.99

14.57

0.77

4.77
6.25
5.15

3

27
3

7+

5

9

22

4
2

9

5

6
a

-t

11

13

25
26

11

iB
17
'tg

32
5J

33
44
3+

36
43
30

24
26
70

27
27
27
3l
48

47

47
32
31

32

1 Year and 2 months
3 months

2 Years and 3 months
3 months
5 months
9 rnonths

1 Year and 10 mouths

4 months
2 months
9 months
5 montits
6 months
2 months
3 months
ll months

1 Year and 6 months
2 Years and 2 tnonths
2 Years and 2 months

ll months
1 Year and 6 months
1 Year and 5 months
1 Year and 7 months

2 Ycars and 8 months
2 Ycars and 9 months
2 Years and 9 months
3 Years and 8 months
3 Years and 1 months

3 Years

3 Years and 7 months
2 Years and 6 nlonths

2 Years

2 Years and 2 months
6 Years and 10 months
2 Years and 3 months
2 Years and 3 months
2 Years and 3 months
2 Years and 7 months

4 Years

3 Years ald 11. months
3 Years and 11 months
3 Yt'ars and 11 months
2 Years and 8 months
2 Years and 7 months
2 Years and 8 months

32.?4 9.42

23.58 9.31

8.25 ti.51

Bank

ICICI Bank Linrited
Bank Linrited

Axis Bank Litnited
Axis Bank Loan -PRDSOOlvl MARP & MKOt)

AXIS lunt ED22A,SandDC120&Ta HitacZ

Axis Bank Limited - EICHER PRO 8028

Axrs Bank -EICHER PRO 8028XM TIPPER

HDFC Loan - 8 Equipments 86002244

Axis Bank -Volvo FMX & 500PRD -FYZO

ICICI Bank [3 Execavators)
IIDFC Bank Limited
Yes Bank Limited
Yes Bank Limited
Yes Bank Limited
HDFC Loan - Solar Proiect
HDFC DC 120 Sandvik -84668768 (FYz

HDFC DC 120 Sandvik -8+668762(FYz
HDFC Volvo TipPers 2 -84668776 &84
lgnf'c zNo'r Exca370,1No Exca20o&2 No's Ex

llctcl grnk 6 Nos. - MR Granites

I rfofc - Sany Excavators 3 Nos 2.80Cr

HDFC Eicher Trtrck -

HDFC - Volvo Wheel Loader
HDFC VOLVO FMX 460'TIPPER 4 No's

HDFC BANK-Exca Drill22A DrilingUnit
HDFC Bank Limited

Total ofterm loans from banks secured

94.49

257.00
:,61.53

9',2.97

65.64

191.16
88.82
46.00

272.05
160.98
271.67
37?.75
354.60

55.45

54.00
277.98

79.00
80.60

2+5.00

303.40
123.06
280.1.3

44.20

385.06
+87.73
177.97

t42.00

50.56
80.80

128.44
49.85
37.73

737.10
65.+6
33.90

?01.19
12t.58
220.82
289.17

220.16
30.60

31.74
309.45

48.61

+9.59

150,7 5

210.88
417.15

280.13
42.56

377.94
348.78
123.70

:27.90

8.35
9.00

9.02 &9.26
9.47

8.91

8.77
8.77
8.77

7.40

8.31 & 8.62
8.00

8.90
9.89

9.92

987

8.65
8.6,5

8.55

8.25
7.30

7.20
7.'20

7.20

8,25
8.',25

8.25

25.99

TIe e,r

Ih
HYDERA

(-,

J,

u------



Period of maturity
from balance sheet

date
Name of Financial Institution

Total No. of
Instalments drte

Interest rate
o/o

Amount of
Loan

2.Against hypothecation of Mining Equipment and guaranteed by the chairman of the company:

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 709.82 10 93 +7'24

Tata Capital Fin Ser t.td-Kobelco380 190.57 8'63 75'32

HDB Financial Services Limited 94.76 8'55 5'57

Tata Capital Fin Ser Ltd-Kobelco38o 95.29 8 63 39'64

Citicorp Finance (lndial Lrmited 2+.42 8 75 11'42

Citicorp Finance (lrrdia) Limited 95.28 7'05 43'67

Citicorp Financc flndia) Limitett 45.40 8 75 21'23

20
t9

3

20
20
20
20
2l

1 Year and 8 months
1 Year and 7 mouths

3 months
1 Year and 8 months
1 Year and 8 months
1 Year and 8 months
1 Year and I months
1 Year and 9 months9 1.137.00189.57LimitcdC Finance

372.54Total of term loans from others secured

21
33

1 Year arrd 9 months
2 Years and 9 months

30.78
6.54

(a) Secured:
l.Against hypothecation of Vehicles
Daimler Financial Services lndia Private Limited
TATA Capital Financial Services Ltd

56.79
74.51.

1 1.09
10.94

MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR l,akhs, unless other,llise stated)

(ii) Term loans from others
Terms of

There is no contilluing default as on the balance sheet date in repayment ofloans and i[terest amounts.

Current

,746.91

Note 15.2 Details of Current borrowings i

From HDFC Bank Limited
Primary Securityr
First charge in favour of the Bank by way of hypothecation of the company's entire stocks of work-in-progress, Firrished goods and cousumable stores

rncluding Look debts, biu whether. documentary or clean, outstanding monies, rcceivables, both present and futurc, in a fornl and manner satisfactory to

the Bank and as specified in CAM.

Security Deposit:
Retention money deposit with principals
Collateral Security:
Equitabte Mortgage of plot no25a, Sr No.41 and 42 situated at Krishnasagara, Attibele Industlial Area, Karnetaka belonging to the company.

Personal Guaranteet
personal Guarantee by two Directors and a relative of Directors of the company

Corporate Guarantee:
By Midwest Gold Limited (Subsidiary Company)

The above loatrs carry's iilterest @ 1 ycar MCI.R plus 2.65 0/o

From South Indian Bank
Security:
Land admeasuring 10861.11 Sq. yards situated in D- Block of Industrial development area, in Sy no 48 part of chinagantyada village, visakhapatnam

belonging to the comPanY.

Personal Guarantee:
Personal Guarantce by threc Directors and a one relative of Directors of the company

From Shinhan Bank
Securityi Duly and unconditionally accepted documents (bills) backed by Letter of Credits

The above loans carry's interest @ 3 months LIBOR plus 1.000 o p.a

There is 1o default as on balance sheet date in repayment of loans and intercst amounts'

J

H

As at
lvlarch3l,2O22

As at
March 31, 2021

Secured
Working capital l.oans repayable on demand:
(i)From South lndia Bank

(ii)From IIDFC Bank Limited

fiiiJFrom Shinhan Bank

From Directors (Refer Note: 37)

Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Interest accrueC but not due

Total Current

532.1

342.O

7

r8

62.95
535.33

)8.66 83.05

2,095.39
27.t|

1,860.84
23. 1 6

1.803.83

Amount of
Instalment

due

.\
(

L,, l,g-*



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated]

Note 16: Proyisions

Employer's Contribution to State Insurance Scheme: Contributions are made under State Insurance Scheme for eutitled employces at the
prescribed rate to Employee State Insurance Corporation. The obligation ofthe company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further
c0ntractual nor

limployer's Contribution to Provident Fund

Note 16(a):
(i) Defined Contribution plans
lintployer's contribution to Provident Fund: Contributions are made to provident fund for entitled employees at the prescribed rate as per
I ( gulatiols. The contr!butions are made to registered provident fund administered by the governmcnt The obtigation of the company is limited to the
amcunt contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

(ii) Defined )lenefits plans
Post-employment obligations- Gr atuity
'Ihe company provides for Sratuity for employees in India as per the payment Jf Cratuity Act, 1972. Employees rvho are in conhnuous scrvice for apericd of5 ylrars are eligible for gratuity. The amount ofgratuity palzble on retiremeni/terrninarion is the einplovees last drawn basic salary per
mcnth computed ploportionately for 15 day's salary multilJlied fbl.the number ofyears ofservice.

li and uf Defined

Defined Benetit Obligation at begin,ring ofthe year
Current Seru(I (:ost

ln.erest Cost

Actuarial loss for the year
PaiC

Defirred at end
Curterrt

th.-

ln Stafement rrf Profir and Loss
Current SeruicJ Cost

Intcrest Cost

Cost
Cthcr Co:rrprehensive lrrcorrre

Actuarial loss toii t}Ie )'ear
Net for in OCI

Signifi caut estimates; A(tuarial assr:lmptions and sensihvity
were

l)iscounE rate
Salary growth rate
Withc!rawal ratc
Nornrdl ketirerxenri Age

.-lVerage Future Seryices
Table

As at
Itarch 3t7, 2C2'

3ln.42
63.1 5

247.?.7

24.5U

t7.t'L
41.91

I
I

')2.67

22.67

As at

As al

24.33
?.0.64

44.97

17.9r)

March 3

6.88 96- o.92c/o

4.Ct096

4.C0o/o

58 Ycrrs
11.48

/,
/(*i"t;l

w)

As at
March31,2022

As at
March 31,2021

Employee Benefit Obligations
(i) Non-Current
Leave encashment 74.27

252.45
64.35

247.27
326.72 377.62

(ii) Current
Leaye encashment

Grand Total

24.47
't4.21

20.09
63.15

98.68
425.40

43.24
39+.86

As at
March3l,2022

As at
March3l,2OZl

56.75
3.23

56.43
'2.b8

Gr'atuity 'Unfundedl

370.4?.

24.33
20.64
(7.esl

264.90
?4.80
77.77
22.67

0.

March 3 ?

As ai
March

As at

326.66
74.21

252.45

7.32o/o

4.\Xo/o

.5E Ycars

Ll./rB

%

r4t.]L)__-._

r\s at
March '.11 . l-i7,1

a__-



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless othem/ise stated]

Sensitivit5r analysis
'l'he ofthe

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while Loitirng ail other assumptions constant. In practice. this is unlikely to occur
and changes in sr:me cf t}re assunlptions may be correlated. When calcularing the :iensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to signlficant actuarial
assumprions, the same nrethod (present value of the defineci i.enefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined brnetit Iiabiiity recognised in the balance sheeL

The rnethods and types ofassuntptions used in preparing the sens:rivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

'fhe weighted average duration ofthe defined benefitobligatron is March 31, 202?:'1.30years (March 31,2021:10.83 rvears).1'he expecteci filture cash

as follows;

Particulars

Defi ned berrefit obligauon-gmtuity
Less than a year
Between Z-5 years

7r',,21

7C4.26

t36.4+
e4.s1 |

1!?J_1_l

I
I

I

_1

63.1.5

Risk Management
The Signrftcant ris:$ the company has in administering defined beneht obligations aIe:

Salary Cost laflation Risk The prescnt value of the Defined Benefit ObligaaiJn is calcuiated'ryit} reference to the futule salaries of employees.

Increase in salary dt'e to ad.rerse inflationary pressures might lead to higher }iahilitres.

Nute 17: Other liabili6es
Non-cttrr3n t

As at
March 3 'f021

209.39
102.95

r:utrcnt

Advance iccelrcd fi'om customers
Iiabiliti es

As at
Ivl erch 31 . 2 023

2,443.64

Note 19: Incorre tax
Current tax Asset

i ess: Preparrl Taxcs
Provrsioo for ta;l

Crrr.e:it irx liebilities

Provis:on tcr tax

Total curient t3r liebilirics (netl

D

*
Db

Particulars
As at

March31.,2O22
As at

March3L,ZO2l
Defined Benefi t Obligation
Discount rate:(0/o change compared to base due to sensitivity)
Increase: +170

Decrease: -1Yo

Salary Growt\ rare:(0/o change compared to base due to sensiti\rity)
Increase: +1%o

Declease: -tclo

Withdra$,al rate:(yo change compared to base due to sensiovityJ

Incrt.ase : +196

Decrease: -19o

326.66

307.26
348.67

347.08
308.38

332.75
319.90

370.42

290.46
3 33.20

3 31.20
297.93

315.10
30+.07

As at
M,lrch31.,2OZZ

As at
Ilarch 31,2021

March 3 ztlz2
As at

6,564.25
7lt.54

1,s at
o2z Mal ch 3 2021

As at

1,934.46
98.50

?'8,79

As at
[tarch 31, 2021

85.94
1,629.05

723.22
s.47

2.00L.2'-<

972.01

?,973.2+

t,8a2.96
,7

March 3 2027

707.96

As at
202?

As at

As at
Match31.,ZOZZ

As at
ltlarch31,2027

1,545.00
(7,271.78)

HYDERABA']

l4----,

I r)2.9s
209.?9

ioI Capit3l woiks
Empbyee benefi ts payable

Creditors for expenses

other linJncial



For the year ended
March 37.,2021

For the year ended
March 31,2022

21,999.77

2.03
26.45

32.,813.86

0.63
271.51

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Sale of products
Other operating revenues:
Export incentive
Sale of out of

22,027.6533,086.00

MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 20: Revenue from

Total revenue from

Disaggregation ofrevenue from contracts with custorners

The derives revenue from transfer of oCs fronr the locations.

Contract Price Reconciliation

2 086.0c

Information about tnaior customers: Two customers represents \C9'o or more of the Company's total revenue during the year

ended March '3L2A22 anC the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 21: Other Incomc
F'cr the ycar ended

lllarch 3 2021
Intcrest income from finarrcial assets carried at amortisecl cost

Dividend income
Equipment Rental Income
Income from Jobwork
Benefits accrued on Key lvlan insurances
Fair value gain on foreign exchange forward contracts [net)
Gain on forcign currency transactions and translations [netJ
Provision no longer required written back
Gain on Redemption of non curent investments
Net gain arising on financial assets mandatorily measured at F!/TPL
Gain on sale of property plant and Equipment
Refund of 'ferminal excise duty
Rental Income
Other lncome

Note 22: Cost of raw material consumed

712.94
0.51

3A936
277.6\

51.61
23.C0

49.34
0.05

733.36

70.'29

i40.44
?-5.18

63.66
26.iig
2 5.00
1'rr.7722.78

'1.!7

49.(t9

30.32
9i2.72

343.89
15.32

45.47
.76.87

March 3 2A2L
For t.he year ended

March 3 202?.
For thc year enderl

7 7!.77
74,527.40L9,777.38

642.44

Geographical location
- India
- Other countries

999.L723.863Total

For the year ended For the year ended
March 3 2022 March 3 202L

Contract Price

Less: Variable corsiCeratiotr

33,093.23
7.23

22,047.73
20.08

z 27.65

For the year ended
Malch 37,2C22

Total other income

March -r 2021
For the year endedFor the year endcd

l4arch 37,2A22
i42,.01
5L)8.06

181.34

Raw materials at the beginning ofthe year 181.3 5
(t25.58

157.51rLess: Raw rnaterial at the end ofthe
Purchases

46A.73Total cost of raw material consumed

V rl

o.
*

639.43

\
1tit
:t
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MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 23 in inventories of finished ds and rvorh-in-

Note 24: benefits ense

Note 25: Finance costs

Note 26

Depreciation of property, plant aud equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation
Total

For the year ended
March 3 2022

For the year ended
March 31-,2OZl

476.92
74.56

3.55
4.24

ry'

For the year ended
March 31,2OZl

780.08
769.50

2,054.08
370.L2

Opening Balance:
Finished goods

Work-in-progress
1,s49.582,424.20

'2,L'20.03

22.97
2,054.08

370.72

Closing Balance:
Finished goods

Work-in-progress
2,424.2O2,L43.0O
(874.62)28t.20Total changes in inventories offinished goods and rvork-in-progress

For the year ended
March 31,2027

For the year ended
March 31,2022

3,8c9.35
s6.43

2.68

145.93

3,9+9.54
56.75

3.23

777.66

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances

Contribution to provident fund and other funds

Contribution to ESI

Staff welfare e.{penses
4,1^o4.394,187.18Total employce benefits expense

For the year ended
March 37,2022

462.77

57.64
18.88

Interest Expenses Measured ;r.t amortised cost
On Financial Liabilities
On Lease liabilities

Interest on income tax
Other borrow costs

499.?,7539.29Total Finance costs

For the year ended
March 3L,ZOZL

t,069.29
402.22

0.43

For the year ended
March 3l,2OZZ

1,238.1s
21..57

0.33
7,47L.94\,259.99

W
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MIDVJEST' GRANITE P}IIV,qT}i LIMI'I'ED
Notes to the Financial statements
(/tll anrounts in INR Lal$s, unk:ss otherwise stated)

Note 27: Other

Job work charges

Por,r,er and fuel
Rent
Repairs to buildings
Repairs to machinery
Repairs to cthers
Insurance
Itates-and taxes, excluding taxes on inco:ne
Pri:riing and stat-ionery
Ccmrrrttnicat'ion expenses
Lcgal and prcfessiopal charges
Traveliing arrd cottvelzance

Vehicles nailltenance
Cari'iage a:rci freighc
Payrnelts to Auditors
Advetisement
Donations
Corpcratc Social Re sponsibilig'
Sales comrnissicn
Securitl chargt:s

Losr: on l;ale cf assets

llaci rir:bts vt rittel off
Pl'rvisi,.:l ibr e:lpecred cre d,t losses

I'rorrisiorr ftrr clcubt fu I advarrces

ljook deficir on assets drscardeci
(ir:neral cxpenscs
Slrarc ofLoss frorn Paflnership firrn
Loss on Sale of In're.strnents

Net loss on transactions and translations
Total other

Note 27 Details of to auditors

Lrai'ment tr) arrditors
l\s Statutory Auditor
For Tax ALrdit

For Taxation matters
For Consoiidation
For Certificaticn
i"or Reirnbursernent of exnt:nses
'Iotal tr to audilorri

For thc year ended
March 31,2022

For the year ended
It{nrch 37,ZOZL

7.88

513.35
7L7.48

18.15

2,61.2.15

78.36
176.87
'249.07

70.22

2 5.51
207.t4
2?,1.59

29.4F,

8i>6.62
75.28

6.2'L

44.34
,1.16;/1

81.15
i34..25

7.39
353,57
106.90

20.46
1,789.59

59.:t7
86.08
54.74

B.B9

23.2i
202.66

61.36

19.05
530.22

17.39
0.56

t20.49
39,08
37.C3

126.07
116.00

29.99
\73.+l
245.43

l?.?.6
113.51

7.65

34.73

372.57
22.98

174.87
5'i.?.5

123.,13

34.,15

284.25

For the year ended
March 37,2lJ22

10.55

For the year ended
March 31,?O?l

-1

2.5!,)

1.38

0.85

10.20
1.00

4.70
2.50
2.55

0.44
15.2n L7.39

w-
* HY



MIDWIjST GRANI'TN PIITVATE LIMITED
Notes tc the Financial statements
(All arncunts !n INR Lakhs, ttnless othent'ise stated)

Note 27 social

Anrount requir'ed to be spent as per section 135 of the .Act

An.rount spent during the year on

a j(ionstmction/acqrrisition of any asset

Ccnstruction-con:uni',yhal- U/S Rural devlopment Gudivada

[i) Cn out'posr::
-Pronroting healthcare
-Prombtirig educadon
-Others

Accnral lovr,ards unspent oblig,alims in relation to
Proposecl transfer of unspent amount relating to ongoing projects''

Shortfall at the end ofprevious year
Total ofprevious years short fall
Reason for shortfall
Related pnrty transactions
Provision for liabiliqy - corrtractual obligation

Nature of CSR activities

I)rofit from operations hefbre income tax expenses

Curreilt tax rate in lndia
Tax ou proiit ti'otn c'!.eratiorrs
Tax cffect of amrlrnts r.vhich:.rre not deductible (taxahie) in calculating
taxable income,
Ii:<penses not allo'weC ,"o: tax purpose
Inconre not Corr::idert:cl for ta:< purpose
Adj'.lstrrrent ou account of Ivlerger
Others
Income tax

Promoting edrrcation, healthcare, desttute care

and rehaliilitation, COVID. 19 relief anrl rrrral
dcveloirment projects

For the year ended
Marcir 37,2422

For the year ended
ll{arch ?7,ZOZl

tlote 2B: Incuine tax expcnse
This note provides an arillj,sis of the company's income tax expense, sho'w anrounts that are recognised directiy in equity and irorv

the tax expenso is at-fer-tect hl, non-assessable and non-dctluctible iterr,s It also 
"xplains 

signilicart estilnates rnade in relation to

the compan!"s tav J)oriitioDs.

For the ycar ended
lllarclr 3!,2021

Income tax expcnsc
Cui"rcnt tax

Current tax on profit:- fbr the year' 1,775.i4 1,5-15.00

Income tax ustments of t:arlier 5

1 770.25 545.00
Deferred tax
Deferred tax to profit or loss

Total Defcrred tax e:<pense/fbenefit)
Incomc tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

[31.8?) Ii1j8.09)

Current tax fincorne)/ expcnse rcccgn!sed in otl.re I s9]llple_rfil: tve lncome
5.68

'iotal inconre tax 362.59

Reconciliatiori of i r:< and the India's tax rate:

6',l.59

176.i4

32.?.5

NA

NA

For the year ended
March 3L,2OZZ

6,830.25
?,5.1,58o/o

r,719_04

72.58

[3(r.50)
.i r..3 1

76.18
4.63
3.68

2c).16

0.51

9.4L

I.IA

NA

37.28
39.08

5,072.00
25.'J 63ott

L,Ztit.S2

152.85
(36.71.)

0.0

qb
HYDERAB*

For the year ended
March 31,2,A22

Total current tax

L,356.97't,738,43

(2.00)

L,736.43

73b.43 ?62.59

For the year ended
Marclr 37,ZOZL

u"



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notcs to the ['inancial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise statedJ

Financial Instruments and Risk Management
Note 29: Categories of Financial Instruments

820.74
6,058.19

.24

Note 30: Fair Value Hierarchy
The following table preserrts the fair vaiue hierarchy of assets and liabilities:

Fair valrte of the financial instruments is classified in various fair yaine hierarchies based on the followirrg tiiree Ievels:

Lc'/el 1: Quoted priccs (unadjusted) in active markr)t for identiial asscts or liahilitics.
Lcvcl 2: Inputs other than quoted price including within level I th;,f arc observabletbr thc asset or )i:irilitr,, citlier dir-ectly 1i.c. as
prices) ot'indirectly [i.e' delived from prices). The fair value offin;:ncial insirum.nts that are not tradcd in ao active market is
dotermii.led using valu:rtion techniqucs which maximize thc use cf ol-rservable rnarkct tlata an<i rely as little as possiSle on entity-
'\peciflc estinlates. Ifsignificant inputs requirod to fair vialue an ins[rument are oi-"servable, the instrument is included in Level Z.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not bascd on obseruable market data [unubservable iuputs). if one or more of the
signrficant inputs is nct based on observable nrarket data, the instnrnent is includerl in lcvel 3.'Ihis is the case with iistedjnstruments where Dlarl(ct is not liquid anci tbr.u;rlisteC instrunrents.

[i) Invsstments include equity investrnents in Subsidiaries, Joint venture which are carricci at corts and irence are not
required to be disclosed as per lnd AS I 07 "Financi.rl Iu3trurnents Disclosures". Hancr, thc sar::+, havc been exclutlcrl from thc
above tatrle.

(ii) The carrying amounts of trade payables, other Il;.arrr:izrl l;1r;l;r:es, bcrrorvings, r;a:;h antl c;rsh equivalents, other bank
l'alanccs, trade receivables and other f;rrancial assets are considcltr.i tc be the :;ame as their fai:- vaiues due to their short term
Lature.

Note 31: Financial Risk Management

Tirc Cornpany's activities exposc it to rnarket risk and credit;-j.sk.'ihe Company errrphasis orr risi,. nrauagernent anr1 has ari
enterprise $'ide approach to risk managemcnt.'Ihe Co,nparry's risk marragement and control procerlures involve pl.icriti?,ation anc
c(rlitinuilig assesslrrent of these risks and device appropriate colrtrols, euaiuating and reviewing the control mechanisn.

lA) CreCit Risk:
CI edit risk ls tho l:s!( or p,)tential o[ loss tt'.rr rq:i]r occrrr drre ro failrr:'c ,rf bor:'-.rvei'/cor.,ntet perty to nlsrt the cbligerion on agrced
tet:ns aiiC conditions olthc finarrcial (:cntract. C:i.llit ri:;k ari:;es frorr, financial assets such as casir anct cash equivaleirLs, other bank
tralant::, tracle rccci'ri:bles at:d other finencta! aiscts. Thccompany havc ;i creclit risk rr.arlagemer^t Drlicv in place to limit cr.erlit
losses dite trr nott-lrerforrnenc,: cf finatrci'rl r:rrr''rterlr,r';rs; :nd customer's. V,:r n,onricr rrur e):posur{ ir crr.rlli rrsir ou :t:; cngc!ng
basis at vatious lerrels.

(t) Trade Receivable:
Thc credit risk rclal.ed to trade receivairlt,s i: rrrf}reri.:rC rn:'i:rly t:y i.rc inJividual characterij-irs cf;ejll cu!-tc!n{:r.. -i'l;e (icnrpanlr
follo',vs a 'simplified a)rpr(,ach' (i.e. based on hietnne liCL] for re:oguition of i:n,:eirrnent loss iiiowar:cc ..n I'rade l.ecci\,ah,es . i:t)c
thc purpose cf Ineasuring lifetinre ECL allowance fo;' tradr: recervables, ti:e co.lpany estinlates irrr:ccv: rabje a;;loints h:ueC (,n the
ageing of the receivable balarrccs a:td histoncai exporienr:c at ear:[ reporrr:rp, <rate. 1'he otar,il!,(jtnrjr-r: h:rs idgnlitied l[e s1re6ifi9
c'.lsti'rI:ei ft'oin rtncm utnorrnt is nct rccovelal;le anrl th.. s-lrrc is pIc\';Cr)C f;rl e:.:pecteC cre,lit )osses. Hr:rice, th.r ir!.alraltsirctri
bclievcs thlrt rrc furti:et'provrsion for expecrctl credit lor: is rerluirei rs rl:c batance anrorlnt( a!.3 tlrily rgar)yeriihle.

.il
qh.

HYDERABA

{:

FairValue
Hierarchy

As at
March37,2O22

As at
March 31,2021

CarryingValue Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

A. Financial assets

a) Measured at amortised cost
iJ Cash and cash equivalents
ii) Other bank balances
iii) Loans

iv) Other financial assets
vl Trade receivables

Level-3
Level-3
Level-3
Level-3
Level-3

546.44
1,664.16
3,451.99

979.89
2,845.32

s46.44
1,864.76
3,454.99

979.89
2,845.32

385.03
83.19

2,084.25
883.34

1,660.80

385.03
83.19

2,084.25
883.34

1,660.80
Sub-total 9,690.80 9,690.80 5,096.61 5,096.61

b) Mandatorily Measured at FVTPL
iJ Investments in equity

instruments in other entities
Level-1

276.78 276.78 34.76 34.76

Sub-total 276.78 276.7A 34.76 34.76
Total financial assets 9,967.5A_

699.27

5,824.60

_ 2,4!'-1.68 -
4,967.49

9,967.5A s,131.37 
.

870.74
6,058.19
2,973.24

5,131.37

B. Financial liabilities

a) Measured at amortised cost
i) Trade payables
ii) Borrowings
iii) Other financial liabilities

Levcl-3
Level-3
Level-3

699.27

5,82+.60
2,4.13.68

Total finuncial liabilities 8,967.49 e,851.57 9,A51.57

I

A

u.-



Gross carrying amount
Expected credit losses ( Loss allowance provisionJ

Net amount of

MIDWEST GRANITE I'RIVATI LIMITED -

Notes to the Financial statements

[All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

are the credit loss for receivables rinder ed

Particulars

As at
Nlarch31.,2O22

3,340.32
(4es.00)
2,845.32

(B) Market Risk:
Market Risk is the risk that the future value of a financial instrument will tluctuate due to moves in the market factors. The most

common types ofmarket risl<s are interest rate risk and foretgn cltrrcncy risk.

. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is thc l.isk that the tuture casli florvs or' the fair value cf a financial instrument lvill fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company managcs its market interest rates by fixerl rate interest. llence,the Company

is not significantly exposed to interest rate risks .

. Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in

foreign exchange rates. The Company has substantial exposure to foreign currency risk due to the significant exports made.

Sales in other countries and purchases from overseas suppliers are exposcd to risk associated with fluctuation in the
currencies of those countries vis-a-vis the functional currency i.e. Indiarr rupee. The Company is very cautious towards
hedging as it has a cost as well as its own risks. The Company continually reassesses the cost strllcture impacts of the
currency volatility and engages with custonr3rs addressing sur:h risks. The Company has not designated hedges rtnder Hedge

Accounting.

as at the
As at March 37,2022

USD Euros
Equivalent
Amo[nt in
INR[Lakhs)

TraCe receivable
Advance for Purchases

Advancc tbr Purchases(capital)

27,02,331
5,34,262

___3_2,36,643
64,11.,496

3,14,143
4,57,856

21,500
4,342

-_?.!r9!_
53,842

2,004.89
396.45

24.t7
Unhedfled Assets 2,425.45
Advances from customers
Payable for Supplics
Borrowings

4,772.75
230.97

332.L4

Unhedged Liabilitics 5,275.4O77 5

Trade receivable
Advance for Purchases

Advance for Purchasesfcapital)

As at March 3L,2027

USD Euros
Equivalent
Amount in
INR(Lakhs)

72,70,965
3,70,867
1,36,500

21,500
4,342

28,000

952.73
276.34
724.44

Unhedqerl Asscts 77,74,232 S'.r,412 1,3 53.51
Advances from customers
Payable for Supplies
Unhedqed Liabilities

6,99,821.

6,98,621
374.40
573.52

L3,98,4.42 LOZAs2
The Company uscs Forward Exchange Conracts to hecige its exposurcs ih fbreign curreilcy rclated to unrleriying transactions

and firm commitmcnts. The information on Derivative lnstrulnents is as foilo',vs:

Fonvard Contracts as at end are unitrr
As at

Nlarch31,2O22
As at

Mnrth 31,2021

In sell USD

.24,00,000 _

'fhe Conrpany uses fr)rward exchange contract.s to hedge its transactional crttrcncy exposuleJ in t'oreign currcncy relatcd to
underlyirig transactions and firm commitrncnts and neasurt,s them at tair value. The counter party in thcse deri.rative

instrunrenis are generally highly rated countsr paities s,r-h as banks and the Company consitlers the risk oftron-performance
by such co*nte:itarty as not material. The Ccmpany i:as not desrgnated hedgei undor l{e.tge -q.coilqttng. Thc.se derivativc.

instruntcnts are car:'ied at fair value with changes beir'rg recognjser! tu the Statement of Profit and [,t'.::s Although, such

rlr.r'ivatrve instrun:enrc are not designated ir, a hedge relatir;nship, they act as ao econonric hedgc a'rd \i'ill cffset.'.ht gatn / loss
in the undcrl;r'ing tlansactions when they occul'.

t-

As at
March 31,2021

2,727.07
(460.27)
1,660.80

Crrrrency
Cross

Currency
In Buy tlSD ln I)SD in sell USD

INR USD 58.50.000

u_.=-



MIDII/EST GiGNITF: PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statcments
(All amrunts in INR Lakhs, unless other.wise stated)

i) Foreign Currency Risk - Sensitivity
The analysis is based on the assumption that the i;oreign Currer;ry has in,;reaserl / (rlecreasrd) ily 2.5clo,rvitlr idl other
variables held constant.
2..i7o irrcrcase or decrease r.'1'-es have the before tax
Particulars

USD Sensi'divitl,,:
ii.lR/tlS[' -lrrcre:rsc by
INll/USIJ .Decleasc by
Euros Sensitivity:
INR/iiurn -increase by
INR/rEuro .llecrease by

(C) l,iquidiiy Risk:
L'irittidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannor ucet its financial obligations. 'I'he objecitvc of iiquidity risk n:anagement
is to rnaintaiu sufficient liquidiq'and ensure that frrnds are availablc for.,r." r, po.."qrirelnents
The Company manage its risk from their principle sorrrce oi rrlsorrrccs such as cash and cash e<;uivalents , cash flows that is
SerleratL'd from opelations and other means ofbot'rorvings, ro enriurc, as far as possible, that it ?ill aiwal,s have sufficient liquidity
to ,nect the lisbilities.
Thc u!rle beiow provides details regarding th'e remaining conrractaal matorities of financial Ii:.!bilities at tll: reporting
datc:

Ou l)ernand Due in one year
at 31,2022

Borrowing
5,A24.60

rrcie and other pavahle
699.2.,

Othel iinancial Iiabilities

-t,72?..rC

8?.0.14

2,973.24

6,053.19
820.14

2,973.24

Di O:h.r'.'risk - Iri;pact of COI/ID-19
'l'ltc. nrattagcntent has assessed the impact ct (lovlD-i9 pandemic on the.linancial statcments, business opcrirlions, liqui,tiryposit'ion' cash florv arrci has concluded that basetl on the crrlrent e:;tirnarc-j no .ratcria.l. adiu.rtr:rcnts ara rciuirerl iu the car.ry!ng
amount ofassets and liabilities as at 31st March 2022.
The in'pact of the pandemic nay Le differcr:t frtilrr tliat est:,r:at:ed :s ar ths date cl aF,prcval ct..hr:se Standalone financialstltc;nelrts and the Ccrnpatlywiil continue ro clr;sely nron!tor any rnr.teriai clrarrges to firture cconrrnic co,:ditions.

I.lote 32: Capiial Managelnerrt
]'fre Ccrdpany's finincial str.ategy ainrs to prcvitle a'ictluate capit:tl for its gr(rwth plans for sustarned stakclrrrlder valrrc. The
,company's objective is to safeguard its ability ro io::tintre as :r goiig concarn, so that it can colltinuc to p:'cvide returns forsharrel:ulders and benefits for other stakeholders. And rieper:ding ou the financial market sccnari o, natrlre of thg ftrrrdint
l eqLirements and cost of such funding, the Cornpany decides the optimum capital stnrcture. The Compa;r'r ;ums at nla;l,taintng astrong capital basl'so as to maintain adequate supply offunds tovrardi future growth plans ;ls a going concern.

The the stnrcture on f!:e brsis of tot?l debt to

Particul;rrs As;t As at
3

N(,t D(:

Eqult-y

Toi.;rl lret Debt Total Equiw)

3,4t4.00
30,043.O4

.o4

LO.Z9o/c

41,037.6tt

2,786.91

s,824.ri0
s46.4,.t

s,589.97
24,945.27

s.243
Ner Deht r0 'l'otal Capital [yo)

debt

A) Borrorvings
Non. crirrent br,rrowirrgs
Crirrent bcrrcr.ri rt g>-

I<ri;tl[A)
Bl Cash antl casir equivalerrt:;

ilanl< baiarce.i othe r tir:r;r ;rbove
Tolal[B)

lB.3to/o

As at
March 31,2021

j,251.36

2,803.83

6.058.19
385.03
83.19

468.22Iict -'--r-
1.Sir4.16 I

i4s90 L
2,414...i0 t,

49

As at
lJlarch?7,2O2120?.2

72.42

('J.541

0.51

(72"42)

As at
Mar<.h 3

7.16

17.16)

(0.s4)
0.54

Total

Ls at Marcl: '-41,2C'21

l'iorro.,vin;
Tradc and Dther pa,'ablrl
0tircr ljnarrcial Iiabilitics

Due ifter one

102.97 3,037.69

6Al3's

1,884.00
699 2L

::,254.36

, Asar
iaarx\r 37,2O22

B1

year

2,4,1.3.68

1,4--.---"



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise statedJ

Note 33 Liabilities and Commitments

Note 34: Payables to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
Information pertaining to Micro and Small Enterprises as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Smail and Medium
Enterprises Development Act,2006 [Act) as given below has been determined to the extent such parties have beerr identified
on the basis of information available with the Company:

Principal amount remaining unpaid as on 31st March

Interest due thereon as on 31st March

Interest paid by the company in terms of Section 16 ol' Micro, small and Mediurn
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of paymerrt madc to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payrnent I rvhich have been
paid but beyoird the appointed day during the year) but without adding t-he
specified under the Act

Interest accrueC and rernair.ing unpaid as at 31st March

Further interest remaining due and payable even in ttre succeedirrg years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the snrall entei'prise for the
purpose ofdisallcwance as a deductible expenditurc under section 23 ofthc Act

Note 34 ofTrade ,bles as at March 202?,

1.. 2 Years

As at
March 31,2OZZ

As at
March 3l,202l

| (a) Contingent Liabilities:

| 
[i)On ...ount of Corporate guarantees

| 
(ii)On account of LetJer of credits and Bank Guarantees
(iii)Income tax demands disputed/contested by the company pending in appeal
(iv)Demand of Excise duty against the company

[v)Demand of Custonr duty against the company
(vilDemand of Entry tax against the company
(b) Commitments:
[i) Capital commitments

[i)On account of Bonds executed with Customs authorities
(Refer note (i) below)

823.73
45.47

627.08
193.19

7,37682
326.79

875.85

1,858.68

7,984.35
85.10

386.47
793.19

7,376.82
323.57

607.52

2,073.76

Note: [i) Performance obligations relating to bonds executed with cr.rstoms authorities has been duly met bythe company and
applied for redemption of bonds which is in the process.

[ii) It is not practicable for the company to estimate the timings of cash flows, if any, in respect of the abo.ze pendiltg resolution
of the respective proceedings.

2022
As at

March 3 2021
As at

Ittarch 3

NIL

NIL

NIL

NII.,

NII,

NII.

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Particulars Not Due
Less than

1 Year
2-3 years More than

3 Years
Total

[i) Undisputed Dues
MSME

Others
(iiJ Disputed Dues

MSME

Others

303.25 161.38 4.87 77.95 277.76 699.27

Total 303.25 161.38 4.47 17.95 271.76 699.21

*
u---



Particulars Not Due
Less than

1 Year
1- 2 Years

223.22

2-3 years More than
3 Years

257.02

Total

Ii) Undisputed Dues

MSME
Others

(ii) Disputed Dues

MSME

Others

53.67 233.1L 58.32 820.L4

s3.67 233.91 223.22 58.32 251.O2 820.14

Notri 3 of Tl'ade as at March 3 2027

Total

Note 35 ; Segment Information

Description of segments and prir.cipal activities
The Whole time Dircctor.has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODMJ. Operating seglneuts are defined

^r 
.on',pon,,nts of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available. This is evaluated regulrrly by ttre C0DM,

in deciding ho',v to allocate resources and assessirrg the Company's performance. The Company is engaged in the br.rsiness <lf

[iJ quarrying, manufacturing and processing and selling of Granite and; (ii) manufacturitrg of diarnond rvire rope; arrd operates
as tlvo seperate operating segment.

The reportable segrnents has been provided in the consolidated financial statemeuts ofthe company and theref<rre no separate
tiisclosule olr segment information given in this standalone financial statements.
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MIDIYEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
[All irmounts in INR Lal<hs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 36: Interest in other entities
The Conrpany's subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates, Limited liabiligv partnerships and Partnership firnrs as at March 31, ?.022 are set
beiow. Uniess other'\/ise stated, they have share capital consistrng solely of equity shares that are heltl dircctly by the company.

Narne of the entity Relationship Principal aotivity As at
March 3 2027

Relia;rce Diamond'fools I't ivatc Limited

Andhra Pradesh (MidurestJ Granite Private
I.imited

EEMI, I.{idrvest Limited

Mi rlvrr:s t lloldrngs Limitcd
Anriya Srrrart l'cchlrologies Private Limited
Midwest Neostone Privatc [,irnited

Midwest Quartz Private Limited (w.e.f. March
07,2022)
Astral Granite Private Lirnited (w.e.f. September
01"202 1)
Midwest Energy Private Limitcd (Up to fanuary
28,'2022)
Midwest Grrld Limited

Subsidiary

Subsiiliary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Subsidiar.y

Suhsicliar_y

Subsidiary

Subsidrary

SubsiCiary

Subsidiary

loint vellture

Iornt varlllre

Manufacturing of
Diamonri Tools

Quarl;'ing,
manufacturing and

processing ard seiling
of Granite

Mining and Mincral
Trading

Investment Conrpany
Softrvare Develcpment

lUa,rrliact;rre of Non-
rnetalic products

Mincral Exploration oi'

Quartz

Mineral Exploratioir

Energy solutions

Trading Business of
Granite \{arbles and

Gold

Pi odilction and
'l'radiug of Silca

tr'ro ducts
Mincral Expioration

Iv!anufacturing of
Buildine I\{aterials

Irtanufacrure of
Granite Slaos

100c/o

tl5o,b

S3o/o

i.00o/c

99.99o/c

ic07i,

L00.o/c

L00o/o

7101,

7Sg,o

!:a%
50%

50o/o

1,00o/o

B5o/o

53o/o

tO0o/o

99.99o/o

l00o/o

1.00o/o

71o/o

7So/t

5lt/o
50t%

5Ao/o

Deccarr Silica [.LP

Baan'-rl:r Ivlincrals
Soutlr Corst )nfrasLructule Development
Conrpanl' of ltndhra PraCesh LjnriteC
5;M!V Cranitcs LLP

lnterest
As at

March

Note 3 ?: Releteti l,arg' 'Iransactions

(a) 5ubr-idiaries Reliance Dianrr-rrd'l'ools Pnvate Lirnitcrl
Andhre Pradcsh (Midr"rest) Granite Plivate Limited
BEML Midrvest Lirnited
Midrvest Hrrldings Limited .

.A-tna). a Smalt Technologies Private Lintited
M i Cvre-.:t Ne t-.ston e Private I.i mitr-.d
!\{idrvest Energy Pri.:ate Llniited (Up to January 28.2Ar',2)
Astral Granite Privatc Limited(w.e,f. Septenrb cr 09,292 L)
Miri'arest Quartz l)rivate Limited (w.e,f. March 07,2022)
Midryest Gol i t,irnitcd
Deccan Silica Li,P

Baalrula Minerals

* w--



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Step-down subsidiaries

(c) |oint venture

(d) Key Management personnel(KMP)

(e) Relatives of Key Management personnel(l : K.Deepak
: K.Uma Priyadarshini

Transactions with Related Parties:

: South Asia Granite and Marble Private Limited
: Maven Holding Limited
: Midwest Africa LDA
: Midwest Gercoal LDA
: Midwest Gondana LDA
: Midwest Koriba LDA
: Midwest Texera LDA

South Coast Infrastructure Development Company ofAndhra Pradesh Limited
SMW Granites LLP

K.Raghava Reddy, President
K.Ramachandra, Director
K. Ranganayakamma, Chairman
K.Soumya, Director
G.Ravindra Reddy, Director

%

As at March 37,2027As at March 37,2022

Amount
Outstanding balance
as at March 3,.,2022

Amount Outstanding balance
as at March 31,2021

1.Key Management Personnel:
Short-term employee benefi ts
Remuneration*:
K.Raghava Reddy
K.Ramachandra
K.Ranganayakamma
K.Soumya

Acceptance of unsecured loan:
K.Ranganayakamma
K.Soumya

Repayment ofunsecured loans to :

K.Raghava Reddy
K.Ranganayakamma
K.Soumya

Professional charges:
G.Ravindra Reddy

2.Relatives of Key Management personnel:
Advance for expenses:

K.Deepak

Rent paid:
K.Ramachandra
K.Soumya

Rent paid:

K.Deepak

Salaries:

K.Deepak

K.Uma Priyadarshini

t4.68

2t.00

387.53
61.35

381.58
406.04

27.50
26.89

42.00
21.00

454.64
439.94

(28.66)

(6,62)

(280.70)

(234.87)
(L72.22)

(36e.60)
(224.56)

10.50

2L.00

373.67
348.22
497.66
392.57

2L4.00
100.00

42.00
21.00

L40.t6
4L3.L3

( 1.1 6J

(299.r0)

(1.62)

0.09

(6.62)

(293.98)
(278.s8)
(47r.s0)
(276.60)

(27.s0)
(ss.ss)

+ Provision for emplovee benefits, which are based on actuarial valuation done on an overall company basis, is excluded.
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MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise statedl

AW

As at March 31,2022 As at March 3l,2OZl

Transaction
Amount

Outstanding balance
as at March 37,2OZz

Transaction
Amount

Outstanding balance
as at March 31,2021

3.Subsidiaries:
Unsecured loan (Given):
Midwest Gold Limited
Midwest Neostone Limited

Eouinment Rental Income:
Andhra Pradesh (Midwest) Granite Private
Limited

Sale of goods:

Midwest Gold Limited
Amaya Smart Technologies Private Limited
Andhra Pradesh (Midwest) Granite Private
Limited

Sale of Property. Plant and Eouipment:
Baahula Minerals
Andhra Pradesh fMidwest) Granite Private
Limited

Rent Received

Midwest Gold Limited

Interest Accured on Loans

Midwest Gold Limited
Midwest Neostone Private Limited

CorDorate Puarantee given:

Midwest Gold Limited
Reliance Diamond Tools Private Limited
Andhra Pradesh Granite (MidwestJ Private
Limited

Lease rent paid
Andhra Pradesh (Midwest) Granite Private
Limited

Reiumbursement of Expenses
Andhra Pradesh (Midwest) Granite Private
Limited
Midwest Gold Limited

Corporate guarantee taken:
Midwest Gold Limited

Purchase ofgoods:
Reliance Diamond Tools Private Limited
Andhra Pradesh (Midwest) Granite Private
Limited

366.5?l
78.00

309.36

69.33

452.37

L.20

62.21
6.22

175.00

r6s.22

2.45

2,348.62

0.44

41.88

2,2t2.90
84.22

28O.67

2.93

1.75

158.07

381,.24

733.36

33.08

44.23

7.20

39.92

175.00
189.37

847.57

392.43

16.56

r,784.12

(344.63)

278.79
2.93

4.66

175.00
189.37

847.57

392.43

* IJYDERAE;l



MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(Transaction Amounts are outstanding

As at March 31,2022 As at March 2021
Transaction

Amount
Outstanding balance
as at March 31^,2OZ2

Transaction
Amount

Outstanding balance
as at March 31, ZOZ7

Purchase ofassets
Andhra Pradesh (Midwest) Granite private
Limited
Reliance Diamond Tools private Limited

Midwest Neostone Private Limited
Midwest Energy Private Limited
Midwest Quartz private Limited
Astral Granite Private Limited
Deccan Sillica

Vandeep Technoidenrity Solutions private
Limited
Midwest Energy Private Limited

Vandeep Technoidentity Solutions private
Limited

Reliance Diamond Tools private Limited

Reliance Diamond Tools private Limited

Reliance Diamond Tools private Limited

Capital advance:
Reliance Diamond Tools private Limited

4.Step-down subsidiary:

South Asia Granite and Marble private Limited

South Coast Infrastructure Development
Company ofAndhra Pradesh Limited

SMW Granites LLP

SMW Granites LLP

SMW Granites LLP

S.foint venture:

Minerals

Minerals

246.87

257,41

479.23

522

)

L.02

66.

15

1.50

82.14

143.83

(1s6.s7)

300.13

7.4t

58.71

(s.73)

0.1

540.00
97,

479.23

15.00

64.6

21,9.96

88.00

47.L2

35

506.

2.03

0.42

522.55

506.16

300.13

(257.54)

[1

6.39

67.66

87L.00
246.97

excluding applicable taxes and

I

includes applicable taxes)

qh
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MIDWEST GRANITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise statedJ

Note 38:
The Board of Directors of the company, at its meeting held on March 22,2022 and the creditors (Secured and Unlecured )of the
Company at their respective meetings held on June 14, 2022,had considered and approved a merger of RDT Diamond'r'ools priyare
Limited C'RDI-) and Midwest Mining Private Limited ("MMPLJ into Midwest Granite Private Limited by vvay of a composite scheme of
amalgamation.
Regional Director (RD), through its order dated November 29,2022 has approvecl the scheme with tbe appointed date ofthe merger
being April 'i.,2021.

As per guidance on accounting for common control transactions contained in Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations" the rnerger has
been accounted for using the using the pooling of interest method. Accordingly, all the assets, liabilities a:rd other rese1vcs of
transferor compalries were aggregated with those of the Company at their respective book values. As prescribed by the Scheme no
cotlsideration was paid as the transferor Companies were wholly owned subsidiaries of thc Companv.Accordingly., the resultant
difference amounting to Rs.0.75 Lakhs was credited to capital reserve account.
The previous year figures have therefore been restated to include the impact ofthe merger.
As part of the Schcme, thc equity shares held by RDT Diamond Tools Private Limited and the Midwest Mining Private Lirnited stands
cancelled.

Note 39 : Assets pledged as security
The amounts of Com assets for current are

Working capital loans from banks
(secured)
Primary security

Currcnt assets
Financial assets

Itlon financial assets

Property, plant and equipment
t freehold leasehold land and to leasehold

Total crrrrent
Note: Collatcr;il sccurity and other conditions / detaiis are Cisclosed in Note 15.

Note 40 sharc

9.17

Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic and Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders ofthe company used in calcu!.tting earnings per
share

number of sharcs used as the ,Ienonti;rator

As at As at
March 3 202?. March 2021

average numbcr ofequify shares used as th:: deilonlnafor in calculating

as

earnings per sharc
Adjustments for calculation of dilutcd earnings per share:

numbcr of shares used as the deitoninator in 13

Note 41: Note on Balances:

(ii) Confirmation lctters have been issued in respect oftraCc receirables and othcr reccivables and advanccs and tlade payaliles and
other payables of the company but not responded in many cases. Balances where confirmations.are not forthcomilrg,.such balances
are suhject to reconciliation anC consequential adjustme:rts requlred, if any, v.rorrld be determinetl/made t-rr. receipt of confirmation.
Hcwcver, in thc opinion ofthe Board, assets otherthan Fixed Assets and non-currertt inyestments have a value crr rcalisation in the
ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated ar,d prrrvision for all knovrn l:a.bilities have been
made.

Note 42: No Dclay in charge creation / satisfaction *itt-, ROi U.ynnd the statrrtory period.

basic

diluted

74,373 83,878

O

Acc'

As at
March37,2O22

As at
Match3l,2tJ27

8,759jt9
B,Bri3.96

1C,831..52

4,238,75
7,783.26
7,880.08

ztj.43+.37 19,902.O9

As at
March31,2022

^4s at
March31,2OZl

share attributable to the holders ofthe
Basic & Diluted EPS[INR)

and Diluted 6,851.86.

A5 at
March 31, 20212022

t.82

As at
March 3

3,715.09

HYDERABA

qrr
*
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MIDV./EST GIIAIJITE PRIT,;ITE LIMITED
Notes to thc I'inancial staterncr^ts
(all amounts in iNR Lakhs, ttnless otltcn'vise stated]

Note 43: Ratios to be

Current Assets

Total debt

As at
March 31,2021

Earnings
available debt
Service = Profit
after tax+Non
cash expenses +

Interest + Other s

non cash

Profit after tax

Sale of Ploducts

Revenue from
operations
Net Credit
Purchases
Revenue from
Operations

Profit after tax

Earning befole
interest and
taxes

Net Profit

Currclrt
Liabitities
Shareholcier's
Equity
Debt Service =
Inteiest
payr:rents I
Principle

lPr)'o,"ntu
i

l^u.r"r. 1

1.19

0.19

L.23

1.3

14.63

74.45

L3.61

L5o/o

iVo/o

0.85

1,60,,L

7o/o

-20o/o

'.io/c

3'Io/o

3t/o

5C96

-34r/t

-2%t

5o/o

1.

0

1

lihareholdr'is
i.rnd's
Average
lnventory
Average trade
r'eceivable
Average Trade
Payabies

Wori<ing Capital

Revenue from
cperations
Capital employed

= Net wolth +

Total debt r

Deferr:ed tax

10.18

't4.29

9.64

20.73

7'./o/o

Average Inve"-ted
funds

Reasons t'or Variance:
Debt Set.r'iee Cor/er.age Ratio: Charrge on account o[ increase in eainings available debt scrvice tiuring, tilc year

InveutoryTurnov€r Ratio: Char,ge i:; on account of increase in rev:nite frollr opelatior-ls dr:ritrg the yeal.

1'raric l,a-v-ables Tunroyet. Ratio: Change is on acc,runt of in crease in paynleitt to tradc payables compareri to Previous year.

Net Capitrl Turnover Ratio : Change on account of jnclr:ase i,l Re',,enile an,i Cecrease in rvi.rrlcitrg capilal.

Note 4,t (i): fio hlnds nave been advanced or loaned or investcd feitl:er frorn borrowed funds or share pretniutn or any other sollrucs

or kind of t-undsj by the Companv to or in any otber pcrsolfs.l cr entily(!r:s). inclucling foreign entitiils ("lntermediaries') 'ivith the

unCcrstanCirrg, rvhether recor.cled in writing or otherwise, that thc i;rrerrlcdiary shail lcud or illvest in pai$' iCentified by ol on behall

of the Comparry (Ultinlate Beneficraries). The Corr.pany lras not reclived any fund from any par$(s) (Funriing Party) lvith the

unCerstardirrg tt:ar the Corrrpa:ry shall whether. dii--ctly or indrrer:tly lend or itrvest in other persons ol' enritics identified by or on

behalf of the Comp.lriy ["Ultirnate Bcneficiaries") or prryide any gua.antee, security or the like on be]ralf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 44 (ii), No funCs l:avc bcer, received by the Comp.rr,y fiom any person or cr-rli$', includirrg lbrclgri enti$'f"Funding Pa.ties"-1,

r,r'rth the unriersta,rding. v;hether recorded in tvriting or cr:her'vise. that thc Contpairy shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or

tnvesrinolhe: peisonsorentiti6sidentifiedinanynratrnerwhatsoeverbyoi'onhehaifoftheFundingP2l'q,'["Ulitr,lateBet,cficiarics")
or-protile any gualanrlee, security or the like on behalf of '"trc tll';imate lJeneficiariL's.

4W
* HYDERA

Bo/o

I

-k

v

Yo Change in RatioNumerator
As at

March 31, 2022I)cnominatorParticulars

a) Current latio(iir tirnesJ

b) DL.bt-[quity ratio(in times)

cJ Debt selvicc coverage ratio(in
timesl

dl rletrirn orr Erpri:y ratio[in J6)

e) Inventory turnover ratrolin timcs)

fJ 1'rade rcceivables turrtot,er r.rtio(in

gJ Trade payahles turnover ratiofin

l,let ca1:ital turnover ratio(in
tirrles)

i) I{et profit ratio(in %)

j) Return on capital cnrployed(in 96J

kj Return on invcstr:rcnt(in L/c)

nrcsj

es)

1Oo/o 2o/o

u-
'l
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Particulars
Opening

balance as on
AprilO7,2A2l

Amount of
transaction

A. Loans given by the company
(al Intlrest freg CnlglCIq{Se451lrior to 7/4/2
South Coast Infrastlucture Development of Andhra
Pradesli Private Lirnited

_0_1 
4

300.13

Amount
outstanding's as

on lllarcll 31,
2022

:100.13

7,2'tL.14Midwest Gold LimitcC 1,211..1.4

572.98 428.79 1,001.77
84.?.2 u4.22

1C:;.40 103 .1C

tis0.00
Iteliancc Diamond'l'ools Private t,imited

Midwcst Nr'ostone P,:ivate Lirnited

.{strai Cranitc l)rivate I,iniited

Scuth Coasr Infrastructure Dcvelopment Company of

B, Investnlcnts rna ile:
a) Ilquily Sharer;

Limited

s:unsecuredIntc;e!t bea
Midwest Cold Limited

Privzrte l,irnited

Private LimitcdAr,tlhra Pradesh Gl anitc
BllIIl, Miirrvcst Limited
Mia'.,r,est Ho Limited

Smart Tcch

Miri.,r,est Private Lllnitcd+

Private Lir,'ritedI{idv.zest

MiC,a,est Cold [-iru;tcd

Andhra Pradcsh

851.,00

2.i6.97

66L.72

tr71,00

_._-_Ll!!lB_
97.75

224.O,
2.50

600.00

2

2.50

tr6l.72
01.16

208.."6
15.00

40.0c
64.67

178.62
600.00

Vy'orking Capital
Loans and other
credit facilitres

:.r 1,78.62

[-t::ican Silica t)

bi Pref'erence ies

B, qg11ln Le_._gi-r_,llr' _ __

SMW Crarrites l,LP

Mitlwr:st tloldutl;:; t,imitbd

4 0.00

o3.!'7

l'iiCwest Gold l,imrte:rl

Mirili,e st Private Limii.cC

Andhra Fradcsh Glanitt iMid',r,estl Private Limited Working Capital
l,oairs

I}IIDWEST GRANITE PRIVA'IE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 45: Details loans given. Investments made and guarantec given covc;"ed under sub-sectiott (4) of section 186 of the
3

Purpose for which
loan or guarantee
is proposed to be
utilised

97.75

1

1,75.0C

S,:uth.\sia Granitc and !l:rrble Plivate Limited
r lnvcs[nrcuts solri during the year

Note 4.5: Thc figures for the llrevious year have been recla"-srficd ,; re;rouperi u/'rrerc!'3l' necessaly to ccnfornt to cuu'ent yuar's
cilse,ficarion.

The accornpanf ing noto:; are an integral part of the llnanciai ::tatcl)rc;-tts

.{s irer ciu' report of evcrr rlatc

.ccr MAIII'iI &CD.,

Ch a rte reri. licco u n ta n is
F'!rrn's Regi:tratiorr i{unrb gi:0 i5975S

I;or antl on belalf of '8oald

g Luvqh'fr
Kowshik Anna
Parlner
Nlr,rnlrership \u,nber :'24477 2

Hyderabad
Decemher 4,2022

li-Ilan8an;iyakar !nra
(lhairmaa

DIl,l:000:]3i69
Director

DIN:00050006
*

I

t|71.30
(246.A',7)

'_).:4.09

----a-:

165.22
179.?_'.1
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